CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small
and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk may be
attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-
sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of
this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Noble Engineering Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement in this report misleading.
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “ Board") of Noble Engineering Group
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries, | am pleased to present our annual report
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

OVERVIEW

The Company’s shares (the “Shares”) were successfully listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing”) on 29 September 2017 (the “Listing Date”).
Stepping into the second year after the Listing, the Group has encountered
intense competition in the wet trades industry landscape in Hong Kong.
Although the Group has enhanced its efficiency and capacity by utilising the net
proceeds from the Listing to acquire new machineries and equipment, the
intensified competition in the market has cast a negative impact on the Group’s
tendering success rate and profit margin.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded a total revenue of
approximately HK$364.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately
10.9% as compared to approximately HK$408.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2018. For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded profit
attributed to owners of the Company of approximately HK$11.9 million as
compared to profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 of approximately HK$13.2
million. The decrease of the profit was mainly attributable to the decrease in
revenue and reversal of loss allowance, and increase in professional expenses
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PROSPECT

In light of the core difficulties in the wet trades industry, the Group intends to
implement a more prudent approach in project selection in the upcoming year,
that is to say, the Group will selectively place tenders to well-established
contractors and remarkable business partners to ensure projects on hand
remain steady and receivables are sound.

The Group will continue to improve our operating efficiency and profitability of
our business and plan to expand our fleet of machinery and equipment, which
will enhance the basis of our technical capability to bid for future projects. The
Group will also proactively seek opportunities to expand our customer base and
market share and undertake more wet trades projects which will enhance value
to our shareholders and stakeholders.

The Board believes the Group’s business strategy and industry expertise could
generate and contribute greater value to its shareholders and investors.

Tse Chun Yuen
Chairman and executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Joooggoo

DEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS AND
PROSPECTS

The Group performs wet trades works as a subcontractor in Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded a net profit of
approximately HK$11.9 million as compared to a net profit of approximately
HK$13.2 million for the same period in 2018. The Directors are of the view that
the decrease of net profit was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue
and reversal of loss allowance , and increase in professional expenses for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

OUTLOOK

The Shares were listed on GEM on 29 September 2017 by way of share offer (the
“Share Offer”). The Group always strives to improve our operating efficiency
and profitability. The Group plans to expand our fleet of machinery and
equipment, which will enhance the basis of our technical capability to bid for
future projects. The Group will also proactively seek opportunities to expand our
customer base and our market share and undertake more wet trades projects
which will enhance value to our shareholders.

The net proceeds from the Share Offer provide financial resources to the Group
to meet and achieve our business objectives and strategies which can
strengthen the Group’s market position in wet trades works services.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors believe that there are potential risks and uncertainties involved in
the operations, some of which are beyond the Group’s control. The Directors
believe the more significant risks relating to the business are as follows:

. Our revenue is mainly derived from projects which are non-recurrent in
nature and any failure of our Group to secure tender contracts would
affect our operations and financial results;

Error or inaccuracy in estimation of project duration or costs when
determining the tender price may result in substantial loss incurred by
us;

If progress payment or retention money is not paid to us in full as a result
of disputes over our work done, our liquidity position may be adversely

affected; and

. Our performance depends on trends and developments in the wet
trades industry.

A detailed discussion of the risk factors is set out in the section headed “Risk
Factors” in the prospectus of the Company dated 19 September 2017 (the
“Prospectus”).

NOBLE ENGINEERING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Joooggoo

Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses decreased by approximately
HK$12.9 million or 44.6% from approximately HK$28.9 million for the year ended
31 March 2018 to approximately HK$16.0 million for the year ended 31 March
2019. The decrease was mainly due to non-recurring listing expenses of
approximately HK$13.6 million incurred for the year ended 31 March 2018, while
partially offset by the professional expenses of approximately HK$5.1 million
incurred for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: approximately HK$2.6 million).

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by 91.6% to approximately HK$18,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2019 from approximately HK$215,000 for the same period in
2018, which was mainly due to decrease in bank overdrafts interest for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

Profit for the year

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded profit attributed to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$11.9 million as compared to profit
for the year ended 31 March 2018 of approximately HK$13.2 million. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in gross profit and reversal of
loss allowance, and increase in professional expenses.

Final dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

Capital structure

The Shares were listed on GEM by way of Share Offer of 150,000,000 Shares at a
price of HK$0.47 per share on 29 September 2017. There has been no change in
the capital structure of the Group since the Listing Date and up to the date of
this report.

Liquidity, financial resource and funding

We financed our operations primarily through cash generated from our
operating activities. During the year ended 31 March 2019, we did not have any
bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2019, we had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$48.8 million (2018: approximately HK$62.9 million) and
pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$5.1 million (2018: nil).

Our primary uses of cash and cash equivalents have been and are expected to
continue to be operating costs and capital expenditure.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio for the Group as at 31 March 2019 was nil (2018: Nil). It was
calculated by dividing total obligations under total bank borrowings by total
equity as at the end of each reporting period multiplied by 100%.

Treasury policy

The Directors will continue to follow a prudent policy in managing the Group’s
bank balances and maintain strong and healthy liquidity to ensure that the
Group is well placed to take advantage of future growth opportunities.

NOBLE ENGINEERING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies

There was no significant investment, material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries and associated companies by the Company during the year ended
31 March 2019.

Significant investments held by the Group

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there was no significant investment held
by the Group.

Future plans for material investments and capital assets

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and in this report, the Group did not have
other plans for material investments or capital assets as of 31 March 2019.

Foreign exchange exposure

Most of our Group’s transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars which
is the functional and presentation currency of the Group. As such, the Directors
are of the view that the Group does not have significant exposure to foreign
exchange risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging

policy.

Charge of Group assets

As at 31 March 2019, aside from pledged bank deposit of approximately HK$5.1
million, no asset of the Group was pledged as security for bank borrowing or
any other financing facilities (2018: Nil).

Capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2019 was approximately
HK$3.8 million, which was used in the purchase of plant and equipment.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

Capital commitments
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no significant capital commitments.

Segment information

Management considers that the Group had only one operating segment which
is mentioned in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Information of employees

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 42 full-time employees working in Hong
Kong (31 March 2018: 46). The total staff costs, including directors’ emoluments
incurred during the year ended 31 March 2019 were approximately HK$17.2
million (2018: approximately HK$18.9 million).

Employees are remunerated based on their qualifications, position and
performance. The remuneration offered to employees generally includes
salaries, allowances and discretionary bonus. Various types of training were
provided to the employees.

Details of the Company's share option schemes is set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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®

Comparison of business objectives with actual business

progress

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the Prospectus with
the Group's actual business progress for the period from the Listing Date to 31

March 2019 is set out below:

Business objectives up to

Business Strategies
as stated in the Prospectus

oooooooooo

31 March 2019 as stated
in the Prospectus
oooooooo

gbooocoocoooooo
oooco

Expanding our market share and
competing for more wet trades projects
which require the issue of surety bonds

ooboooooooooooooo -
oboooooocooood

Further strengthening our manpower

opDoooooooo

Acquisition of machinery and equipment

ooooooao

To take out surety bonds for seven
contracts

gboooooooooo

To hire three site agents, four
assistant site agents, two assistant
quantity surveyors and two safety
officers

To hire an accountant for financial
reporting purpose

Provide training to our existing and

newly recruited staff and/or sponsor

our staff to attend training courses
on occupational health and safety

ooboo0ooooooooogo
oboooooocooooon
gbobooooo

obooooooooogoono
oo

oboo00o0ooooooDoOooDo
oboooooocoocooon
oboboooooooao

Purchase nine forklifts, 18 plaster

spraying machines and 1,550 sets of

parts for plaster spraying machines

0000000180 00000
0155000000000
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Actual business progress up to 31 March 2019
Jo0o0oOoO0oOoOoOoOoOoOoOoOoOooOooooo

The Group has placed a project with surety bond
requirement.

go0oooOooOooOoooooooboooo

The Group has hired two site agents, five assistant site agents,
one assistant quantity surveyor and one safety officer

The Group has internally promoted an administrative and
accounting clerk to an accountant, who is solely responsible
for financial reporting and hired a new staff to fill the vacancy
of the administrative and accounting clerk.

The Group has provided internal training to staff and
sponsored our staff to attend training courses on
occupational health and safety.
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goooooooooobooooboooooooooo
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The Group has acquired 27 plaster spraying machines and
1,250 sets of parts for plaster spraying machines
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Use of proceeds

The net proceeds from the Listing (after deducting the underwriting fees and
other listing expenses borne by the Company) amounted to approximately
HK$41.3 million. After the Listing, a part of these proceeds has been applied in
accordance with the future plans and use of proceeds as set out in the
Prospectus.

An analysis of the utilisation of net proceeds from the Listing as at 31 March
2019 is set out below:

Total planned
use of net proceeds

as stated in
the Prospectus
oooooo
ooooooo
oooooo
HKS$ million
oooo
Taking out surety bonds for joooooooooo 203
contracts we plan to tender
Further strengthening our goooooo 8.0
manpower
Acquisition of machinery and ooooooog 77
equipment
Repayment of bank overdraft goooooo 3.2
facility
General working capital gooooo 21

The business objectives, future plans and planned use of proceeds as stated in
the Prospectus were based on the best estimation and assumption of future
market conditions made by the Group at the time of preparing the Prospectus

gooooo

gobooobooooooooooooooobooo
gooo0o0obo4300b0oooooooooooog
goooOOooOOoO0OoO0OoOooOoooOobOOoDOOoooon

Planned use of net

proceeds up to
31 March 2019
as stated in

the Prospectus
ooooooog
oooooo
oooooo
ooooooo
oooooo
HKS$ million
oooo

17.0
7.6
5.6
32

21

while the proceeds were applied based on the actual development of the gooooog
Group’s business and the industry.
EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD oooooad

The Group had no significant events from the end of the reporting period to the
date of this report.

gooooobooooboo

goboooboooboooooooboooboooooonoo
gooood

Actual use of net
proceeds up to
31 March 2019

goooooo
gooooo
ooooooo
gooooo
HKS$ million
oooo

203

24

59

32

21
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Directors and Senior Management
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Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen (0 O O) (“Mr. Eric Tse”), aged 69, is the chairman of the
Board, an executive Director, compliance officer and one of our controlling
shareholders. He was appointed as a Director on 12 April 2017 and redesignated
as an executive Director and appointed as the chairman of the Board on 14
September 2017. Mr. Eric Tse is the co-founder of Eric Tse Cement Works
Company Limited (“Eric Tse Cement Works”), a principal operating and wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and has been a director of that company
since 9 October 1997. He is also the chairman of the nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”). Mr. Eric Tse is responsible for
the overall strategic planning, business development, and corporate
management, sales and marketing and quality control of our Group. Mr. Eric Tse
is a director of Land Noble Holdings Limited, a controlling shareholder of the
Company.

Mr. Eric Tse has over 35 years of experience in the wet trades industry. Mr. Eric
Tse obtained a plasterer trade certificate, tiler trade certificate and bricklayer
trade certificate in 1996 from the Construction Industry Training Authority.

Mr. Eric Tse is the founding president of Hong Kong Construction Sub-
Contractors Association Limited (U D 0000000 OO OOO) and had
acted as the president of the association until he retired in 2011. Mr. Eric Tse was
named permanent honorary president of Hong Kong Construction Sub-
Contractors Association Limited in 2011. Mr. Tse was a course instructor of
bricklaying, plastering and tiling course organised by Construction Industry
Training Authority from 1977 to 1978. Mr. Eric Tse has been the president of
Association of Plastering Sub-Contractors Limited (0 0 0 0 0 O O O ) since
1997 and has held the role of founding president since 2015.

Mr. Eric Tse is the elder brother of Mr. Tse Chun Kuen.

Mr. Tse Chun Kuen (O 00 O) (“Mr. CK Tse”), aged 67, is an executive
Director, chief executive officer, a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company and one of our controlling shareholders. He was appointed as a
Director on 12 April 2017 and redesignated as an executive Director of our
Company on 14 September 2017. Mr. CK Tse is the co-founder of Eric Tse
Cement Works and has been a director of that company since 9 October 1997.
Mr. CK Tse is responsible for formulating corporate and business strategies and
making major operation decisions of our Group. Mr. CK Tse is a director of Land
Noble Holdings Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. CK Tse has over 35 years of experience in wet trades industry. Mr. CK Tse
obtained the tiler trade certificate (0 O O O O O O ) granted by Construction
Industry Training Authority (O O O O O O) and Vocational Training Council
Hong Kong (U O 0 OO O O)in May 1999.

Mr. CK Tse is the younger brother of Mr. Eric Tse.
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Directors and Senior Management

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chan Wai Lung (O O O) (“Mr. Chan”), aged 38, was appointed as our
non-executive Director on 10 August 2018. He is responsible for providing
advice to the Board, overall strategic planning and business development of the
Group.

Mr. Chan has years of experience in business planning and development. Mr.
Chan has been an executive Director and the chairman of the Board of Finsoft
Financial Investment Holdings Limited (stock code: 8018, the shares of which
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) since June 2017. Mr. Chan
has been a director of Draco International Investment (Holdings) Limited
(specialising in designing corporate structures) since July 2013, the chairman of
the board of directors of Elite Pro-Management Limited (specialising in business
process outsourcing) from October 2015 to July 2018, and a director of Draco
Human Resources Management Limited since November 2016.

Mr. Chan was appointed as a business development consultant by the
Management Committee of the Haining Economic Development Zone,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC in April 2017. In October 2017, he obtained his
Honorary Doctorate in Business Administration from Sabi University in France.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenji (O 0 O) (“Mr. Wong”), aged 38, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 11 September 2017.
He is a member of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) and the Nomination Committee. He is responsible for providing
independent judgement and advising on the issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

Mr. Wong has extensive experience in business management and operation
supervision. Mr. Wong has been employed by Champway Technology Ltd. since
November 2005 and became its operation director since January 2013. Mr.
Wong was a technical manager in Champway Technology Ltd. from November
2005 to December 2012 where he was in charge of various projects. Mr. Wong
oversaw the daily operation, quality control and research development of a
biodiesel pilot plant from 2006 to 2008. Mr. Wong was in charge of designing an
industrial scale biodiesel refinery plant from 2008 to 2010 and he was
responsible for sourcing equipment, coordinating with contractors, vendors and
consultants. Furthermore, in the period of 2010 to 2012, Mr. Wong was in charge
of leading the production team in carrying out testing and commissioning of
the biodiesel plant and the daily production operation after finishing the testing
and commissioning and was responsible for maintaining production related
licenses. In his current position as the operation director, Mr. Wong is
responsible for overseeing the daily operation, fleet supervision, local biodiesel
promotion and liaison with government bodies and other external
communications. Also, Mr. Wong is currently the sole director of Fai Yeung
Trading Company Limited.

Mr. Wong graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
of science degree in May 2003 and was placed on the Dean’s List for the
academic year 2002/2003. He then obtained a master of philosophy degree in
December 2005. Mr. Wong also obtained a Certificate of Competence in Safety
Management of Dangerous Substances from the Occupational Safety & Health
Council in March 2006.
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Ms. Chung Lai Ling (O 0 ) (“Ms. Chung”), aged 57, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 11 September 2017. She is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. She is responsible for providing
independent judgement and advising on the issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

Ms. Chung worked as an administration officer at Maunsell Consultants Asia
Limited. (currently known as AECOM Asia Company Limited) from April 2001 to
June 2006. Ms. Chung worked in Care & Health Limited, a subsidiary of Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited (Stock code: 896, the shares of which are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange) in its health care business over 10
years from July 2006 to February 2017, with the last position as director.

Ms. Chung obtained a bachelor of arts degree from York University in Canada in
June 1987.

Mr. Tang Chi Wai (0 0 O) (“Mr. Tang”), aged 45, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 11 September 2017. He is chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. He is
responsible for providing independent judgement and advising on the issues of
strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

Mr. Tang has over 20 years of experience in auditing and accounting. Mr. Tang
has been serving as a financial controller, company secretary and authorised
representative of Universal Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 1026,
the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) since
June 2008. Mr. Tang has been responsible for financial and accounting functions
as well as secretarial and compliance related matters of the aforesaid company.

Mr. Tang has been an independent non-executive director of (1) Century Group
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as CHerish Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 2113, the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange) since September 2016, (2) Xin Point Holdings Limited (stock code:
1571, the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange)
since June 2017 and (3) ISP Global Limited (stock code: 8487, the shares of
which are listed on GEM) since December 2017.

Mr. Tang graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor
of arts (honours) degree in accountancy in November 1996. He has been a
practising Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since April 2001 and a Certified Internal Auditor of the
Institute of Internal Auditors since November 2015. Mr. Tang has also been a
holder of the Practitioner's Endorsement from The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries since August 2015.
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Directors and Senior Management

Over the years, Mr. Tang has also obtained various professional qualifications
and memberships including the following:

Professional qualifications

oooo

Member of Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
ooopoooooooo

Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
ooooooooooooo

Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
ooooooooooo

Fellow of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong
ooooocooooo

Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
0ooooooooooooooog

Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
ooooooooooog

Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
ooooocooooo

Senior Management

Mr. Tsoi Chi Hei (O O ) (“Mr. Tsoi”), aged 31 is our Group’s financial
controller and company secretary. He is responsible for the overall financial
management and reporting and company secretarial matters of our Group.

Mr. Tsoi has over 8 years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management. Mr. Tsoi worked in Shinewing (HK) CPA Limited from July 2012 to
December 2014, his last position was a senior accountant Il. He then worked in
KPMG China from December 2014 to January 2017, his last position was an audit
manager.

Mr. Tsoi obtained a bachelor's degree of accountancy from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in November 2010. He was admitted as a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) in March
2014. He has been a practising Certified Public Accountant of the HKICPA since
March 2018.
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Corporate Governance Report
HRERNRERERN

INTRODUCTION

The Company is committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Company believes that good corporate
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective management, a
healthy corporate culture, successful business growth and enhancing
shareholder value. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal controls, and transparency and
accountability to all shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company acknowledges the need and importance of corporate
governance as one of the key elements in creating shareholder value. The
Company is also committed to achieving high standard of corporate
governance that can protect and promote the interests of all shareholders and
to enhance corporate value and accountability of the Company. For corporate
governance purpose, the Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules since the
Listing Date up to the date of this report. During the year ended 31 March 2019,
to the best knowledge of the Board, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing, as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct for securities
transactions by the Directors in respect of the shares of the Company (the
“Required Standard of Dealing”). Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Required Standard of Dealing and there was no event of non-compliance
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the Company,
including but not limited to formulating and approving the overall strategies
and business performance of the Company, monitoring the financial
performance and internal control as well as overseeing the risk management
system of the Company and monitoring the performance of senior executives.
The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including the development and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance.

Liability insurance for Directors and senior management officers of the
Company was maintained by the Company with coverage for any legal liabilities
which may arise in the course of performing their duties.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Daily operation and management of the business of the Group, including the
implementation of strategies are delegated to the executive Directors along
with other senior executives. Execution of operational matters and applicable
authority are delegated to the management by the Board with clear directions.
They report periodically to the Board on their work and business decisions.

BOARD COMPQOSITION

The composition of the Board during the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to
the date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen (Chairman)
Mr. Tse Chun Kuen (Chief executive officer)
Ms. Tse Ming Hei (resigned with effect on 10 September 2018) Mote V)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chan Wai Lung (appointed with effect on 10 August 2018) (Note2

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenji
Ms. Chung Lai Ling
Mr. Tang Chi Wai

Notes:

1) Ms. Tse Ming Hei resigned from her role as an executive Director and chief
executive officer with effect from 10 September 2018. For further details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 10 September 2018.

(2 Mr. Chan Wai Lung was appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from 10
August 2018. For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 10 August 2018.

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among the members
of the Board are set out in “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 12 to
15 of this report.

The number of independent non-executive Directors in proportion to total
Board members is higher than what is required by Rule 5.05A, 5.05 (1) and (2) of
the GEM Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive Directors of a listed
issuer must represent at least one-third of an issuer’s board. The three
independent non-executive Directors represent more than one-third of the
Board and at least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. With the diverse
experience of the executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors and the nature of the Group’s business, the Board considered that the
Directors have a balance of skills and experience for the business of the Group.

Corporate Governance Report
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The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in the Board as
they bring an impartial view on the Company’s strategies, performance and
control, as well as ensure that the interests of all shareholders are taken into
account. All independent non-executive Directors possess appropriate
academic, professional qualifications or related financial management
experience. None of the independent non-executive Directors held any other
offices in the Company or any of its subsidiaries or is interested in any shares of
the Company. The Company has received from each independent non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his or her independence, and the
Company considers such Directors to be independent in accordance with the
criteria set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
which sets out the basis to achieve diversity on the Board. Details of this policy
is disclosed as below.

1. Purpose

The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board.

2. \Vision

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance.

3. Policy

When determining the composition of the Board, the Company will
consider board diversity in terms of, among other things, gender, age,
experience, cultural and educational background, expertise, skill and
know-how. All Board appointments will be based on merit, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity to the Board.

4, Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates for Board membership will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
experience, cultural and educational background, expertise, skills and
know-how.

5. Monitoring and Reporting
The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition of the Board
annually in the corporate governance report and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy.

6. Review of the Board Diversity Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required,
and recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.
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7. Disclosure of the Board Diversity Policy

A Summary of the Board Diversity Policy together with the measurable
objectives set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the
progress made towards achieving those objectives will be disclosed in
the Company’s annual corporate governance report.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) which
sets out the approach to guide the Nomination Committee in relation to the
selection, appointment and re-appointment of the Directors. Details of the
Nomination Policy is disclosed as below.

1 Purpose

11  The Nomination Policy aims to set out the approach to guide the
Nomination Committee in relation to the selection, appointment
and re-appointment of the Directors.

12 The Nomination Policy aims to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience, knowledge and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business.

2 Criteria

The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and recommend

candidate(s) for directorships to the Board by giving due consideration

to criteria including but not limited to (collectively, the “Criteria”):

() Diversity in aspects including but not limited to gender, age,
experience, cultural and educational background, expertise, skills
and know-how;

(b)  Sufficient time to effectively carry out duties; service on other
listed and non-listed companies should be limited to a reasonable

number;

(c) Qualifications, including accomplishment and experience in the
relevant industries the Company's business is involved in;

(d)  Independence;
()  Reputation for integrity;
(U] Potential contributions to be brought to the Board; and

(@  Commitment to enhance and maximize shareholders’ value.

Corporate Governance Report
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3  Re-election of Director at general meeting

31

32

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend
retiring Director(s) to the Board for re-appointment by giving due
consideration to the Criteria including but not limited to:

(@)  the overall contribution and service to the Company of the
retiring Director including his or her attendance of Board
meetings and, where applicable, general meetings, and
the level of participation and performance on the Board;
and

(b)  whether the retiring Director(s) continue(s) to satisfy the
Criteria.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of Director at the general meeting.

4 Nomination process

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
appointment of a Director in accordance with the following procedures
and process:

@)

The Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration to the
current composition and size of the Board, develop a list of
desirable skills, perspectives and experience at the outset to focus
the search effort;

The Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertising, recommendations
from an independent agency firm and proposals from
shareholders of the Company with due consideration given to
the Criteria;

The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as
interviews, background checks, presentations and third-party
reference checks;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the
Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of
written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment; and

The Board will have the final authority on determining the
selection of nominees.
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Monitoring and reporting

The Nomination Committee will assess and report annually, in the
Company’s Corporate Governance Report, on the composition of the
Board, and launch a formal process to monitor the implementation of
the Nomination Policy as appropriate.

Review of the Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee will launch a formal process to review the
Nomination Policy periodically to ensure that it is transparent and fair,
remains relevant to the Company’s needs and reflects the current
regulatory requirements and good corporate governance practice. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required
and recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.

Disclosure of the Nomination Policy

7.1 A summary of the Nomination Policy including the nomination
procedures and the process and Criteria adopted by the
Nomination Committee to select and recommend candidates for
directorship during the year will be disclosed in the Company’s
annual corporate governance report.

7.2 In the circular to shareholders for proposing a candidate as an
independent non-executive Director, it should also set out:

the process used for identifying the candidate and why
the Board believes the candidate should be elected and
the reason why it considers the candidate to be
independent;

if the proposed independent non-executive Director will
be holding their seventh (or more) listed company
directorship, the reason the Board believes the candidate
would still be able to devote sufficient time to the Board,;

the perspectives, skills and experience that the candidate
can bring to the Board; and

how the candidate can contribute to the diversity of the
Board.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company on 14 September 2017 and the Company has signed letters of
appointment with each of the independent non-executive Directors on 14
September 2017 and with the non-executive Director on 10 August 2018. The
service contracts with the executive Directors are for an initial fixed term of
three years and the letter of appointment with each of the independent non-
executive Directors are for an initial fixed term of one year, all commencing from
the Listing Date. The letter of appointment with the non-executive Director is
for an initial term of one year commencing on 10 August 2018. The service
contracts and letters of appointment are subject to termination in accordance
with their respective terms. The Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company and the applicable GEM Listing Rules.

According to Article 108 of the amended and restated articles of association of
the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation at every annual general meeting of the Company, provided
that every Director shall retire from office by rotation and are subject to re-
election at annual general meeting at least once every three years. Article 112 of
the amended and restated articles of association of the Company provides that
Directors who are appointed to fill casual vacancies shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting after their appointment, and are subject to
re-election by shareholders of the Company.

Three Directors will retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on 9 August 2019. The three retiring Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, separate ordinary

resolutions will be put forward to the shareholders of the Company in relation
to the proposed re-election of the three retiring Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Group acknowledges the importance of adequate and ample continuing
professional development for the Directors for a sound and effective internal
control system and corporate governance. In this regard, the Group has always
encouraged the Directors to attend relevant training courses to receive the
latest news and knowledge regarding corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has provided and all
Directors have attended training courses on the updates of the GEM Listing
Rules concerning good corporate governance practices. The Company will, if
necessary, provide timely and regular training to the Directors to ensure that
they keep abreast with the current requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
have been established with defined written terms of reference, which are
posted on the website of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the
Company’s website at www.nobleengineering.com.hk. All the Board
committees responsibly report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting meetings of Board
committees follow in line with, so far as practicable, those of the Board meetings
set out above.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstance, at the Company’s expense.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties set
out in the CG Code which include developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, training and continuous
professional development of Directors, and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the code provision in the CG Code and disclosures in this
report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 September 2017. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Ms. Chung Lai Ling, an
independent non-executive Director, and other members include Mr. Tang Chi
Wai, an independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Tse Chun Kuen, an
executive Director. The written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company's website.

The Remuneration Committee has been charged with the responsibility of
making recommendations to the Board on the appropriate policy and structures
for all aspects of Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee considers factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration
packages and emoluments of Directors and senior management and
considered that they are fair and reasonable during the year ended 31 March
2019. No Director or any of his or her associates is involved in deciding his or her
own remuneration.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 29 September 2017. The
chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Tse Chun Yuen, the chairman
and executive Director, and other members include Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Keniji
and Ms. Chung Lai Ling, both independent non-executive Directors. The written
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on the website of
the Stock Exchange and on the Company’s website.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review and assess the
composition of the Board and independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and make recommendations to the Board on appointment of new
Directors of the Company. In recommending candidates for appointment to the
Board, the Nomination Committee considers the merit of the candidates against
objective criteria and with due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity is considered from a
number of perspectives in accordance with the Board Diversity Policy. The
Nomination Committee will also take into account factors relating to the
Company’s own business model and specific needs from time to time. The
ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 29 September 2017. The chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Tang Chi Wai, an independent non-executive
Director, and other members include Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenji and Ms. Chung
Lai Ling, both independent non-executive Directors. The written terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the website of the Stock
Exchange and on the Company’s website.

The Company has complied with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules in that at
least one of the members of the Audit Committee (which must comprise a
minimum of three members and must be chaired by an independent non-
executive Director) is an independent non-executive Director who possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting related financial
management expertise.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the financial
information and reporting process, internal control procedures and risk
management system, audit plan and relationship with external auditors and
arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise, in confidence,
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee held four meetings
to review and comment on the Company’s 2018 annual results, 2018 interim
results and quarterly results as well as the Company’s internal control
procedures and risk management system.

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is of
the opinion that the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019 comply with applicable accounting standards, GEM
Listing Rules and that adequate disclosures have been made.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly for considering, reviewing and/or approving matters
relating to, among others, the financial and operating performance, as well as
the overall strategies and policies of the Company. Additional meetings are held
when significant events or important issues are required to be discussed and
resolved.
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Details of all Directors’ attendance at Board meetings and Board committee
meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2019 are as follows:

Board
Meeting

ooooo

Executive Directors oooo

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen ooooo
Mr. Tse Chun Kuen ooooo
Ms. Tse Ming Hei ooooo

(resigned with effect on 0o00opooooooooo)

10 September 2018)

Non-executive Director oooog

Mr. Chan Wai Lung ooooa
(appointed with effect on ooooooooooo
10 August 2018) ooa)

Independent non-executive Directors ooooooo

Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenji ooooo

Ms. Chung Lai Ling ooooa

Mr. Tang Chi Wai opoooao

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) assists the
Board by ensuring that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company
Secretary is also responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters.

The Company has appointed Mr. Tsoi Chi Hei as its Company Secretary. The
biography of Mr. Tsoi is set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior

Management” of this report.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, Mr. Tsoi undertook no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training to update his skill and knowledge.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has been appointed as the external
auditors of the Company. The fee paid and payable in respect of audit services
amounted to HK$1,000,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019.

No non-audit services fee was paid or payable for the year ended 31 March
2019.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interest and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration
and voting. All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted
by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website after
the relevant shareholders’ meeting.

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by the Board on requisition
of shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company or by such shareholders who made the requisition (the
“Requisitionists”) (as the case may be) pursuant to Article 64 of the amended
and restated articles of association of the Company. Such requisition must state
the object of business to be transacted at the meeting and must be signed by
the Requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the Company or the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong. Shareholders should
follow the requirements and procedures as set out in such article for convening
an extraordinary general meeting. Shareholders may put forward proposals with
general meeting of the Company by sending the same to the Company at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

To put forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send written
enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests in
respect of their rights to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Directors acknowledge that they have overall responsibility for overseeing
the Company’s internal control, financial control and risk management system
and shall monitor its effectiveness on an ongoing basis. A review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems (particularly
concerning the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions) has been conducted by the Board and is
conducted at least annually.

Aimed at providing reasonable assurance against material errors, losses or fraud,
the Company has established risk management procedures which comprise the
following steps:

Identify risks: Identify major and significant risks that could affect the
achievement of goals of the Group;

Risk assessment: Assess and evaluate the identified risk according to its
likely impact and the likelihood of occurrence;

Risk mitigation: Develop effective control activities to mitigate the risks.

Risk identification and assessment is performed or updated annually, and the
results of risk assessment, evaluation and mitigation of each function or
operation is documented in the risk registry of the Company to communicate
to the Board and management for reviews.
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The Group's risk management and internal control systems are, however,
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

A review on the internal control systems of the Company, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions has been
carried out by an independent consultancy company with staff in possession of
relevant expertise to conduct an independent review.

The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control review report issued by the
independent consultancy company and the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019 and
considered that they are effective and adequate. The Board assessed the
effectiveness of internal control systems by considering the internal control
review report and reviews performed by the Audit Committee and concurred
the same.

Under Code Provision C.2.5 of the CG Code, the Company should have an
internal audit function. The Company has no internal audit function because the
Company has maintained an internal control system and its implementation has
been considered effective by the Audit Committee and the Board. In addition,
the Audit Committee has communicated with external auditors of the Company
to understand if there is any material control deficiency. Nevertheless, the
Company will review the need for one on an annual basis.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has established and maintained procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information. The Company has
adopted a code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors in accordance with Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Other
employees of the Group who are likely to be in possession of inside information
of the Company are also subject to dealing restrictions. The Group has strictly
prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or inside information or any use of
such information for the advantage of any individual. Inside information and
other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the GEM Listing
Rules will be announced on the respective websites of Stock Exchange and the
Company in due course.

NOBLE ENGINEERING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019

@

goooooooooooooobooobOoobOooDo
gooooooobooobooooboooooooooao
gbooooooooogoo

gooobO0oobOoobooboooobooobOoboDbDOono
oooooDoO0o0oooooooooobooDbooooo
ogboooomooog

gobooooooooboobooobooooooooo
goooooooooobOoobDOoooboOobboOobodg
gooooooobooobOOoobOOoOobOOoOooooo
oboooooooooooboooooooboooma
gboobooomooobooobooooooo

oobD0ooobOogc2s000o0ooooooooDoono
oooooooooooooooooobooonoooo
oboooooooooboooboooboboobobooooo
goocoOoooOOoooOOoOoOOOOO0OOOOOOoboOo
gooooboboooOoooboooooooooobooobo0oon
gboboooooooooon

Oooooobood

gooooOooboOooOooDOoooOooOoobOoboo
goboobooO0oO0GeMOOOOOb5460567000 00
oooooooooooooboooooboooDbooDOo
gobooooooboooboooboooboooooooao
gboooooooooboooboooobooobooobooag
goboooooooboobooooeeMOODODOODOO
gooooOoooOooOooDOobooOooboOooboOobooo
opooog



COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted shareholders communication policy with the
objective of ensuring that the shareholders and potential investors are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company.

The Company has established several channels to communicate with
shareholders as follows:

i. Corporate communications such as annual reports, quarterly reports,
interim reports and circulars are issued in printed form and are available
on the website of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the
Company's website at www.nobleengineering.com.hk;

ii. Periodic announcements are made through the Stock Exchange and
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company;

iii. Corporate information is made available on the Company’s website;

iv. Annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum for the
shareholders to make comments and exchange views with the Directors
and senior management; and

V. The Hong Kong share registrar of the Company provides services to the
shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend payment and
related matters.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential investors. It
welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquires to
the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

Since the Listing Date, there has been no change to the amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company.
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INTRODUCTION

Noble Engineering Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”, “we” or
“our”) collectively have more than 35 years of experience in undertaking wet
trade works in Hong Kong. We are committed to providing the best services we
can offer to our customers.

As a leader in the wet trades industry, staff safety, works quality control and
environmental management are our paramount concerns. Our management
system is certified under OHSAS 18001:2007 for occupational health and safety,
1SO 9001:2008 for quality management, and I1SO 14001:2004 for environmental
management by the International Organisation for Standardisation (ISO).

Comprehensive remuneration and welfare packages are offered to retain and
nurture our staff. We also extend our care to the broader society by making
various donations to charities and industry associations.

We would like to present in detail below our efforts in fulfilling our corporate
social responsibility in (I) Environmental and (1) Social aspects for the year ended
31 March 2019 (the “review period”).

. ENVIRONMENTAL
1.1 Health, Safety, Environmental and Quality
Policy

For the applicable ISO certifications of our Group, we set up a
“Health, Safety, Environmental and Quality Policy”. The policy sets
out the following principles:

- to ensure the Group is in compliance with applicable
standards, legal and other requirements and to be mindful
of continual improvement and ultimate target in having

zero accident;

- to employ reasonable resources to achieve the objectives
and targets relevant to continual improvement;

- to review the effectiveness of the integrated management
system continuously;

- to ensure effective communication among staff, customers
and interested parties;

- to advance engineering technology and idea;
- to acquire products and services to professional standards,
to minimize environmental impact and prevent injury or

ill-health; and

- to enhance company and staff competence and efficiency
in related works.

NOBLE ENGINEERING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019

@

HRN

ooooooobooooDbDooobDooboOonooobog
00O oooooooooooooooOs3soood
gbooboobooooooooboooono

goooobooobOoobOobooboOooooooooo
goooooooooooooboooooboobooDOo
00000000 (ISso)0 OO0 OHSAS 180012007 O O O O
000D DOOI1so9001:2008 OO0 0O O 0O O I3 1SO 14001:2004
ooooooooooon

ooboooO0oobOoobOoboboOoboooobooooDo
goooooooooobooobooboobobooooog
ooooOoooooo

00O000000000000000000000
000000OD0000O0N0000@NoOo0oWoo
0000000000000O0O0

. OO0
11 0000000000000
000000000 0000000mMO

ooobooooO0oOoooboO0omooooon
ooooo

O goooooooooooooonbo

gooooooooobooooooo
oooooood

O oboooOooDoDobOobOobOobooDbo
ooooo

g ooooOobooOooocooooao

O goooooooooooooooo
oooo

ad obooooooooo

O opobooOOoo0o0O0oo0o0ob00ooooo
oboboooOoboooooooooo

oooooad

a oobOoocooooOoocoooooo
0o



®

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

l. - ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

1.1

Health, Safety, Environmental and Quality
Policy (Continued)

Specifically, we devised areas of concern and standard procedures
for the following:

- Air pollution control: ensure strict compliance with the
Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311) in areas
including “construction dust” and “open burning”.

Procedures are set up to mitigate and control dust or air
pollutants emission. The procedures cover areas relevant
to storing, handling and transporting construction
materials, using tools and vehicles, and using eco-friendly
fuel.

- Waste control: ensure strict compliance with the Waste
Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General) Regulation (Cap.

354C) in the handling of “general waste”, “construction
waste” and “chemical waste”.

Procedures are set up for handling and disposing wastes,
setting up and maintaining waste storage conditions, and
regulating protective gear for personnel handling different
types of wastes.

- Noise pollution control: ensure strict compliance with
the Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400) in terms of
“construction time regulation” and “construction noise
mitigation and control”.

Procedures are set up to regulate the allowable time and
the specific types of equipment for conducting percussive
piling works. Measures to mitigate the impact of noise
pollution such as choosing tools that would emit less
noise, scheduling noisy works to be further away from
residential areas, schools and hospitals, and installing noise
shield around equipment that is expected to emit a lot of
noise.

- Water pollution control: ensure strict compliance with
the Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358)
concerning sewage that would result from concrete works,
vehicle cleaning, other construction procedures, and site
canteen and toilet facilities.

Procedures are set up to regulate the discharge of waste
water into designated waste water discharge point.
Measures to prevent leakage of waste water into non-
designated discharge point are instructed to foremen to
control the impact of waste water to the neighbouring
communities.

[
1.1

Joogooggoo

Dfﬁi
gooboboooooooboooo

goooooooobbobOoOooooooo
ooo

O goooOooOooobOooooboooo
goooooooooooboooooo
oboooooooOooasod

goooooobooboooooooa
gooooooboooobooooboo
gooooooo0oooooooooo
ooooOoooooooooo

a goooooooooooooom
obooooOooooooboOoooboo
Joooomoooomoooo g
00 354cO

oboboobooboboboooooo
goooooooooooooood
gooooooooooooo

O ooooooooobooboooooo
gooboooooobooboOooooo
goo00o0Oo040000m

oooooooboooobooobooDo
o0ooooooooooooooo
gooooooooobocoooooo
ooooooooooooooood
gooooooooooooooobo
ooDooOOoo0OoO0oOooooo

a ooooooobooooooooboa
goooooboOoooooooooo
ooooooooooooooooon
ooo0o0o0o3ssnm

obooboooboobobooooooo
goooooooooooooobooo
obobooobooboooooooooo
oo

ooo0oooOooooooD ooooooooo 31



®

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Joogoogdoo

l. - ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

1.2 Greenhouse gas (“GHG"”) emissions

We are glad to report that, due to the nature of our trade
requiring zero usage of heavy machineries, our operations create
very few emissions.

In the review period, we did not use any gas and therefore have
no relevant GHG emissions to report. We also did not produce

any hazardous wastes from our operations.

The following presents our GHG emissions for the review period:

GHG emissions from use of vehicles:

Aspects 1.1 Unit: gram
ood1a oooo
Nitrogen oxides gram
gooo O

Sulphur oxides gram
opooo O
Respiratory suspended particles gram
gooooo O

GHG emissions from mobile combustion sources:

Aspects 1.2 Unit: kg
00 1.2 ooooo
Scope 1

oo1

Carbon dioxide kg
oooo o0
Methane kg

oo oo
Nitrous oxide kg
ooooo oo

Indirect GHG emission:

Aspects 1.2

o012

Unit: kg (CO, equivalent)
oooooooooooon

1.2

gooomooooonoo

goooooooooooooooooo
000o0oo0oooobooooooooooo
gooood

oooooooooooooDoOoObobOon
000000o00o0o0o0oo0ooooooo0ao
gbooooooooo

goooooooobOO0OO00o0o0o0ooon
oo

goooooOoooooooo

2019 2018
ooooo ooooo
3,558.26 2,633.93
178.01 53.35
261.99 19393

ooooooooooooogoo

2019 2018
ooooo ooooOo
2857778 8,564.78
64.34 19.28
414802 1,243.16

oooogooooao

Scope 2

oo2

Indirect GHG Emissions kg
ooooooao oo
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Joogooggoo

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) . O0ooo
1.3 Use of Resources I3 0000
We strive to lower energy consumption, fully utilise resources, gddoddoogooooobopooooo
and recycle wastes in daily office operations. goooooooogoo
Our staff recycle used papers for daily printing, save up used goooooooobooobooooobo
envelopes for internal communication or drafting, and would oooooooooOoooooooooo
prioritize using electronic communication means over printed goooooooDooOoOoOooooooo
copies for daily operations. Recycling bins are placed beside 0d0dd0d0o0d0o0ogUduooguooo
printers to encourage scrap paper recycling. goo
To reduce the use of foam lunch boxes, we encourage staff to gooooooooboboOoOoooooooo
bring their own lunch boxes to work. They are also reminded to goooooooooooooooooo
set the temperature of the air conditioning at an eco-friendly level gooo20000000
of 25 degrees Celsius.
The following presents our direct electricity consumption for the gobooooooboboooooboooDo
review period:
Direct energy consumption in total and intensity gobooooooooo
2019 2018
Aspects 2.1 In’000 In’000
oodaa goood goood
ooo ooo
Electricity usage kWh 2372 2481
goo ogo
Electricity usage intensity kWh/no. of offices (inc HQ + site offices) 2372 2481
goood gooooboooo
goooooo+000000
SOCIAL (. 0O
II.1 Employment and Labour Practices 1 0o0O000oo
Our people oo

Wet trades works are highly labour intensive. In view of this, the
Group pays due regard to setting its human resources and work
safety policies.

We offer remuneration packages to staff which are
commensurate with their positions, duties, qualifications and
experience to reward them for their contributions to our success.
Our executive directors who have vast experience in the industry
would directly participate in the budgeting process of
remuneration packages for the Group. This helps to ensure the
remuneration and welfare offered are at a competitive level and
can retain talents for the Group's development.

gooooobooooboo

oooooooooobooooobobobod
goooooooobbobooooooga
oo

gooobooooboooooobooooooo
goooooooooooboooooooo
dddodoooooooooooooo
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ooooooo
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Oooooddoodn

SOC'AL (Continued)

1.1

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)

To better monitor our staff's career development progress,
adequate appraisals are conducted. We would offer promotions
and salary increment as rewards to outstanding staff, while at the
same time we would counsel staff who require further
improvements in their performance. They are also welcome to
communicate their concerns with our management at their
respective appraisals.

Our management values equal opportunities at the workplace.
The Group fully complies with laws and regulations prohibiting
unfair discrimination, including the Sex Discrimination Ordinance
(Cap. 480), the Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602) and the
Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487). We build equality
in the workplace by a fair and just recruitment process in which
we would assess people based solely on their experience, skills
and qualifications. An applicant's gender, religion, age or skin
colour would not in any degree affect his or her chance of being
recruited. The same principle applies to our staff appraisals and
counselling.

The Group has zero tolerance to using forced or child labour. As a
member of the construction industry, we are well aware of the
problem of illegal immigrants working at construction sites and
are fully against it. Our HR & Administration Department has
adopted stringent internal controls in the recruitment process to
mitigate the risk of hiring illegal immigrants.

We maintain high standards of business ethics and require our
employees to abide by the Group’s code of conduct as stated in
our staff handbook.

Protecting staff’s health and safety

In developing our business, we are also committed to protecting
our staff's health and safety.

Our OHSAS 18001:2007 certification is a recognition of our
compliance efforts with occupational health and safety standards.
To ensure effective oversight over safety related issues, the Group
sets up safety committees both at the corporate level and the
construction site level. Safety committee meetings are held on a
monthly basis with the executive Directors to set strategic
guidelines for implementation of our occupational health and
safety measures relating to our operation and to monitor the
effectiveness of our safety management measures.

NOBLE ENGINEERING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019

@

O 0Oooo

1.1

gobooobooo

gbooobooooobooobooooooog
0goooooooooooooooood
gooooobooOoooOoOoO0oO0oOoOoOoOooa
ooooooooooooooooooo
ooooooOoOoOOO0O000000oooDo
oooooo

gboooooooobooooooooood
goooooooobooboOoooooo
gooooDobooOoo4s00mOononOon
gooeDOooOOOOOOO4870 M
gbobooboooooboooooobooooo
ddodododooooooooooooog
goooooooooooooooood
ooooooooogoooooooood
gooooOoDooooooon

00oooooooooooooooooo
goooooooooooboooboOooOo
ooooooDDOOOO000000o0ooo
ooooooooooooooooooo
ooooooooooooooooobooao
gboboooooooooboooo

goooooooboboOoOoooooooo
oooooooDoOoOOO000000o0ooo
oooooo

oooooooooo

ooooooooogoooooooooo
goooobOooOooooon

0000 OHSAS 1800120070 0000000
goooooocooooobooooood
gooooooooobooboooooo
gooooooooboOoOooooooo
gooOo0ooooooooobooobooboono
oooooooDoDoOoOOO0O00o0oooooo
goooooooooobOboOoooooo
obooboooooooo



®

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOC'AL (Continued)

1.1

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Protecting staff’s health and safety (Continued)

At the construction site level, site safety committees are also
established on a project basis to implement on-site safety
measures including regular safety inspections to maintain safe
working environment, review of safety plan and update of risk
assessment for the works, review of safety incidents and follow up
of any unsafe practices.

We provide site safety induction briefing sessions for workers on
the first day of work and provide tool box training once a month
for workers on site, including subcontractors’ employees. Site
inspections are carried out at least once a week by our safety
supervisors to ensure strict compliance with the statutory
occupational health and safety laws, rules and regulations.

Effective promotion and communication of safety procedures are
maintained through, among others, establishing safety bulletin
and detailed record of accidents, holding regular internal and
external safety meetings, documenting safety measures and
issues identified for each construction project by preparing safety
reports and training records.

In the review period, we are glad that no fatalities occurred at
either our head office or construction sites. For lost days due to
work injuries, there were only 8 cases of work injuries which
resulted in man-day loss of 2,704 days.

Training and Development

Being aware that labour shortage and ageing problem among
the existing workforce have been the major concerns of the
construction industry in recent years, our executive Directors are
dedicated to train up ever more talent to contribute to the
construction industry. In the review period, the Group continued
to participate in the “Subcontractor Cooperative Training Scheme”
organised by the Construction Industry Council. We have
assigned competent staff who had passed professional skills tests
administered by the Vocational Training Council and the
Construction Industry Training Authority to be in charge of
training applicants to the scheme.

The other safety trainings we organised or sponsored include
safety meetings and training, continuing professional
development for the Group's registered safety officer, and training
courses for safety supervisors. The total number of hours trained
inclusive of these types of training were 237 hours.
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SOC'AL (Continued)

1.2 Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

Apart from regulating our employees on environmental aspects,
the Group is also concerned with its subcontractors’
environmental performance. This can be seen from its selection
process and performance assessment process on subcontractors.
During the selection of new subcontractors, key concerns would
be whether the subcontractor had obtained ISO certificates
relevant to environmental management, and whether the
subcontractor was involved in environmental litigations or
complaints in the past. Once engaged, assessment on
subcontractor’s performance over environmental aspects would
be conducted half yearly to ensure consistent environmental
performance.

Whenever we need to procure and source materials, we would
seek them through a fair and unbiased tender process. Selection
criteria include the price offered by the contractor, their
capabilities to meet our requirement in terms of product and
service quality, as well as service support.

Service pledge to our customer

The cornerstone to our success has been the trust we built
between ourselves and our customers. We have set up customer
communication channels, including headquarter hotline and
construction site representatives, for handling customer enquiries
and complaints. We pledge to resolve any enquiries and
complaints to the satisfaction of our customers and deliver the
best construction service we can offer.

Anti-Corruption

Over the years, we witnessed no suspected or actual bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering activities occurring within
the Group. We stand firmly by our anti-corruption policies and
procurement practices as stated in our internal manuals.
Acceptance of kickbacks, commissions or any forms of benefits
are strictly prohibited during any procurement, contract
negotiations or other business dealings.

The manuals also outline guidance over conflicts of interest,
intellectual property rights, privacy and information
confidentiality, bribery and corruption, and equal opportunities.

Gift policy in our internal manuals clearly states the required
process and procedure for handling and accepting gifts and
advantages.
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” SOC'AL (Continued) [l U Uooo
1.3 Community Involvement 3 0ooo
The following presents our donation to a charitable organisation gdoooooooboooOooooooo
dedicated to help Hong Kong society: goooooooooo
Sik Sik Yuen oono
We extend our care to the community by our donations to Sik Sik gooooo0oooOoooOoooOooooo
Yuen, a religious charitable organization. The organisation goooobooooooooooooOgo
pledges to provide education services, social services for the d0d0o0d0d0o000oUoUogoUooUoooo
elderly, and medical services. We hope our donations can help in goboooooooboooooboboobooo
promoting these charity services and help the needy.
FUTURE APPROACH TOWARDS Dooooooood
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
In the future, we will: gopooooo
Continue our efforts in environmental protection and stringent . gooooooooooboooooobooobooogo

monitoring of subcontractor's environmental performance;

Uphold our high standards in occupational health and safety and ensure . go0oodoDo0oOdoDOoOoooooooobooo
our people can enjoy a fruitful career path with us; and goooooooooooobo

Nurture more and more industry professionals and youth to contribute . gooboooobooooobboboooboboo
to Hong Kong society. ooo
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Directors’ Report
Oodoo

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial statements
of the Company and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the provision of wet trade works services. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019, which
includes a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group,
an analysis using financial key performance indicators of the Group’s business,
particulars of important events affecting the Group, an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business, and discussion on the Company’s
environmental policies and performance and the relationships with its
stakeholders, can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report. The review
forms part of this directors’ report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”). Details of the
Dividend Policy is disclosed as below.

The Company adopts a general dividend policy that aims to provide
shareholders of the Company out of the Group’s profit attributable to
shareholders in any financial year, subject to the criteria set out below.

Such declaration and payment of dividends shall be determined at the
discretion of the Board and subject to all applicable requirements (including
without limitation restrictions on dividend declaration and payment) under
Cayman Islands law and the amended and restated memorandum and articles

of association of the Company.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter
alia:

the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
shareholders' interests;

retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each of
the other members of the Group;

the level of the Group’s debt to equity ratio, return on equity and
financial covenants to which the Group is subject;

possible effect on the Group's creditworthiness;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the
Group's lenders;
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the Group's expected working capital requirements and future expansion
plans;

liquidity position and future commitments at the time of declaration of
dividend;

taxation considerations;
statutory and regulatory restrictions;
general business conditions and strategies;

general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's business and
other internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Company; and

other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board may propose the payment of dividends, if any, with respect to the
Company’s shares on a per share basis.

In addition to cash, dividends may be distributed in the form of shares subject
to and in accordance with the procedures set out in the Company’s amended
and restated memorandum and articles of association.

Except for interim dividend, any dividends declared by the Company must be
approved by an ordinary resolution of shareholders at the general meeting and
must not exceed the amount recommended by the Board. The Board may from
time to time pay to the shareholders such interim dividends as appear to the
Directors to be justified by the profits of the Company available for distribution.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right
in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend
Policy at any time, and this Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend
at any time or from time to time.

Pursuant to provision E.15 of the CG Code, the Company should disclose the
policy on payment of dividend in the annual report.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
12 April 2017. The companies now comprising the Group underwent a
corporate reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) to rationalise the structure of
the Group in preparation for the listing of the shares of the Company on GEM of
the Stock Exchange. Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the Company became the
holding company of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group. Further details
of the Reorganisation are set out in the section headed “History, Development
and Reorganisation” in the Prospectus. The shares of the Company were listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange by way of public offer on 29 September 2017.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
this report. The state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 31 March
2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of financial position and note 30
to the consolidated financial statements respectively. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting is scheduled to be held on 9 August
2019 (the “AGM"). For determining eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from 6 August 2019 to 9
August 2019, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered. In order to attend and vote at the AGM, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Boardroom
Share Registrars (HK) Limited, Room 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 5 August 2019.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last four
financial years is set out on page 124 in this report. This summary does not form
part of the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the plant and equipment of the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATION

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2019
amounted to approximately HK$1,500 (2018: approximately HK$348,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year ended 31
March 2019, together with the reasons thereof, are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in consolidated statement of changes in
equity and note 23 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme on 14 September
2017 (the “Scheme”). The terms of the Scheme are in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules. A summary of the particulars
of the Scheme as required under Rule 23.09 of the GEM Listing Rules is set out in
note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements. To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of these
related party transactions constitutes connected transactions that need to be
disclosed under the GEM Listing Rules.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the Company'’s reserves available for distribution to owners
amounted to approximately HK$37.0 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS AND
SUBCONTRACTORS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the percentage of the Group'’s aggregate
revenue attributable to the Group's largest customer was approximately 75.1%,
while the percentage of the Group's total revenue attributable to the five largest
customers in aggregate was approximately 97.0%.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the percentage of purchases attributable
to the Group’s largest supplier was approximately 5.5% of the total direct costs
paid for the period, while the percentage of purchases attributable to the
Group's five largest subcontractors and suppliers accounted for approximately
19.2% of the total direct costs paid.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates or shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board during the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to
date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen (Chairman)
Mr. Tse Chun Kuen (Chief executive officer)
Ms. Tse Ming Hei (resigned with effect on 10 September 2018)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chan Wai Lung (appointed with effect on 10 August 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenji
Ms. Chung Lai Ling
Mr. Tang Chi Wai

In accordance with the amended and restated articles of association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting one third of the Directors for the
time being shall retire from office by rotation and every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Such retiring Directors
may, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting. All Directors appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of Shareholders after their appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting and all Directors appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Any Director who has not been subject to retirement by rotation in the three
years preceding the annual general meeting shall retire by rotation at such
annual general meeting.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the amended and restated memorandum and articles of association
of the Company, the applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them may incur or sustain in the execution of their duties in their offices.

The Company has arranged liability insurance for Directors’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against Directors arising out of corporate activities.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 12 to 15 of this report.
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EMOLUMENT OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals
of the Group are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Company’s remuneration policy comprises primarily a fixed component (in
the form of a base salary) and a variable component (which includes
discretionary bonus and other merit-based payments), taking into account
other factors such as their experience, level of responsibility, individual
performance, the profitability of our Group and general market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee will meet at least once each year to discuss
remuneration related matters (including the remuneration of Directors and
senior management) and review the remuneration policy of the Group. It has
been decided that Remuneration Committee would determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Particulars of retirement benefits plans of the Group as at 31 March 2019 are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SIGNIFICANT
CONTRACTS

Save as to the related party transactions disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31
March 2019.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ Report — RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” above, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had entered into any contract of
significance with the Company’s controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries,
or any contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by the Company’s controlling shareholders or their
subsidiaries, during the year ended 31 March 2019.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the service agreements (for executive Directors) and letters of
appointment (for the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors) with the Company entered into by each of the Directors, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole and any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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INTEREST OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As confirmed by the Group’s compliance adviser, Kingsway Capital Limited (the
“Compliance Adviser”), save as to the compliance adviser agreement entered
into between the Company and the Compliance Adviser dated 16 May 2017,
none of the Compliance Adviser or its directors, employees or associates (as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in the Group or in the
share capital of any member of the Group which is required to be notified to the
Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the controlling shareholders or any of their respective
close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) has engaged in any
business that competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, or has any other conflict of interests with the Group as
required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules during
the year ended 31 March 2019.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTEREST AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION”
below and the Scheme disclosures in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2019 were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, or the Company’s
subsidiary or holding company or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding
company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

Name
oo

Capacity/Nature of interest
ooooooo

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen (ot Interest in a controlled corporation;
interest held jointly with another person
ooooooo
gooooooooooo

Interest in a controlled corporation;
interest held jointly with another person
goooooo

gboooooooood

gooogeess
Mr. Tse Chun Kuen o)

goooaoeooo

Note: Land Noble Holdings Limited (‘Land Noble”) is beneficially owned as to 50% by
Mr. Tse Chun Yuen and 50% by Mr. Tse Chun Kuen. On 9 May 2017, Mr. Tse Chun
Yuen and Mr. Tse Chun Kuen entered into the an acting in concert confirmation to
acknowledge and confirm, among other things, that they are parties acting in
concert within the meaning of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Tse Chun Yuen and Mr. Tse Chun Kuen are deemed to be

interested in the Shares held by Land Noble.

Long position in the ordinary shares of associated
corporation — Land Noble

Name of associated
corporation
goooog

Capacity/Nature of interest
ooooooo
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Total number of Shares Percentage of shareholding

oooo goooo
350,000,000 58.33%
350,000,000 58.33%

o000o00oo0oo0o0oO0DOooOoobo0ooooboooooboooao
gooo0oOoswdswooooooooooooooono
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Mr. Tse Chun Yuen Land Noble Beneficial owner
ooooog oad ooooo
Mr. Tse Chun Kuen Land Noble Beneficial owner
ooooo oag ooooo

Number of
share(s) held Percentage of interest
gooooo ooooo
1 50%
1 50%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 March 2019, the following persons
(other than Directors or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed
or taken to have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Capacity/Nature of interest
ooooooo

Land Noble Beneficial owner

oagd gobDood

Ms. Or So Lan (ote 1) Interest of spouse

EVFE IR 00010 good

Ms. Yapp Ngi Yang (o2 Interest of spouse

0] [O] @kERERE S gooo

Notes:

1 Ms. Or So Lan is the spouse of Mr. Tse Chun Yuen. She is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all Shares in which Mr. Tse Chun Yuen is interested in for the purposes
of the SFO.

2. Ms. Yapp Ngi Yang is the spouse of Mr. Tse Chun Kuen. She is deemed, or taken to
be, interested in all Shares in which Mr. Tse Chun Kuen is interested in for the
purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, so far as is known to the Directors,
no other persons, other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company
whose interests are set out in the section “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION” above,
had any interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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Number of share(s) held interest in our Company
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 March 2019, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

In order to avoid any possible future competition between the Group and the
controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling Shareholder”), Mr.
Tse Chun Yuen, Mr. Tse Chun Kuen and Land Noble (each a “Covenantor” and
collectively the “Covenantors”) have entered into the deed of non-competition
(the “Deed of Non-competition”) with the Company (for itself and for the
benefit of each other member of the Group) on 14 September 2017. Pursuant to
the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Covenantors has irrevocably and
unconditionally undertaken to the Company (for itself and as trustee of its
subsidiaries) that, during the period that the Deed of Non-competition remains
effective, he/it shall not, and shall procure that his/its associates (other than any
member of the Group) not to develop, acquire, invest in, participate in, carry on
or be engaged, concerned or interested or otherwise be involved, whether
directly or indirectly, in any business in competition with or likely to be in
competition with the existing business activity of any member of the Group.

Each of the Covenantors further undertakes that if any of he/it or his/its close
associates other than any member of the Group is offered or becomes aware of
any business opportunity which may compete with the business of the Group,
he/it shall (and he/it shall procure his/its associates to) notify the Group in
writing and the Group shall have a right of first refusal to take up such business
opportunity. The Group shall, within 6 months after receipt of the written notice
(or such longer period if the Group is required to complete any approval
procedures as set out under the GEM Listing Rules from time to time), notify the
Covenantor(s) whether the Group will exercise the right of first refusal or not.

The Group shall only exercise the right of first refusal upon the approval of all
the independent non-executive Directors (who do not have any interest in such
opportunity). The relevant Covenantor(s) and the other conflicting Directors (if
any) shall abstain from participating in and voting at and shall not be counted
as quorum at all meetings of the Board where there is a conflict of interest or
potential conflict of interest including but not limited to the relevant meeting of
the independent non-executive Directors for considering whether or not to
exercise the right of first refusal.

Each of the Covenantors also gave certain non-competition undertakings under
the Deed of Non-competition as set out in the paragraph headed
“RELATIONSHIP WITH OUR CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS — DEED OF NON-
COMPETITION” in the Prospectus.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company had not received any
information in writing from any of the Controlling Shareholders in respect of any
new business opportunity which competed or might compete with the existing
and future business of the Group which were offered to or came to be the
knowledge of the Controlling Shareholders or their associates (other than any
member of the Group), and the Company has received an annual written
confirmation from each Controlling Shareholder of the Company in respect of
him/it and his/its associates in compliance with the Deed of Non-competition.
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The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed and were satisfied
that each of the Controlling Shareholders had complied with the Deed of Non-
competition.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 16 to 29 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly available to
the Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm
that the Company maintained the public float as required under the GEM
Listing Rules.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no equity-linked agreement entered
into by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2019.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors annual written confirmation of his or her independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2019 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. A resolution
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditor of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen
Chairman and executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NOBLE ENGINEERING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Noble Engineering
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 123, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter

Key Audit Matter

Accounting for construction contract revenue

Refer to Notes 4 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified the revenue -

and profit recognition of
contracting service as a key
audit matter due to
significant management

judgements and estimation -

are required in the
determination of the total
outcome of the contracting
service contracts as well as

the stage of completion of -

contracting service.

Reviewing the contract sum and
budgeted costs to respective signed
contracts and budgets prepared by
management.

Understanding from management about
how the budgets were prepared and the
respective stage of completion were
determined.

Reviewing the reasonableness of key
judgements inherent in the budgets.

. Obtaining the certificates issued by
customers to evaluate the reasonableness
of stage of completion as at year end.

. Assessing the reliability of the budgets by
comparing the actual outcome against
management’s estimation of completed
contracts on a sample basis.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

NOBLE ENGINEERING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

Independent Auditors’ Report
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
agoing concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’

report is Hui Chun Keung, David.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chun Keung, David
Practising Certificate Number: P05447

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Jooooooodddn

Fortheyearended31March2019 OO OO OO0 O000000000

2019 2018
ooood ooooo

HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo

Revenue oo 5 364,165 408,944
Direct costs gooo (334,328) (366,545)
Gross profit on 29,837 42,399
Other income and gain goooooo 6 605 5392
Administrative and other operating expenses goooooooo (15,969) (28,909)
Finance costs gooo 10 (18) (215)
Profit before income tax goooooo 7 14,455 18,667
Income tax expense goooo 11 (2,525) (5,426)

Profit and total comprehensive income fortheyear 000000000000

attributable to owners of the Company ooooooo 11,930 13241
Earnings per share attributable to owners gooooooooood

of the Company

— Basic and diluted earnings per share —ooooooooo 12 HK$0.02 HK$0.03
Details of dividends are disclosed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial oooooooooooooBooo
statements.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial ooo0oooOoOooooOoOoooooooo
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

goooogd

Asat31March2019 OOOO0OO0OOO0O0O0000

2019
ooooo

HK$'000
ood

2018
ooooo

HK$'000
ooo

ASSETS oo
Non-current assets ooooo
Plant and equipment goooo 16 5,722 3379
Current assets oooo
Contract assets oooo 17 58,898 -
Gross amounts due from customers forcontractwork OO0 00000000000 18 - 19,074
Trade and other receivables Ooooooooo 19 22,744 63,732
Bank balances gooo 20 53,849 62,915
Restricted cash gooooo 21 - 820
Current income tax recoverable gooooooo 907 -
136,398 146,541
Total assets ooo 142,120 149,920
EQUITY oo
Equity attributable to owners of the Company gooooooooo
Capital and reserves ooooo
Share capital oo 22 6,000 6,000
Reserves ogd 23 121,068 108,831
Total equity oOooo 127,068 114,831
LIABILITIES oa
Non-current liabilities ogoood
Deferred tax liabilities ogoooog 25 348 402
Current liabilities gooo
Gross amounts due to customers for contract work O000o0ooooooooon 18 - 3,515
Trade and other payables goooooooo 26 14,704 29,096
Current income tax liabilities goooooo - 2,076
14,704 34,687
Total liabilities ooo 15,052 35,089
Total equity and liabilities gooooo 142,120 149,920
Net current assets gooooo 121,694 111,854
Total assets less current liabilities Oooooooo 127,416 115233
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue 000000000000000000000000000O0
by the board of directors on 25 June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: 00000000 0oO0oDoono
Mr. Tse Chun Yuen Mr. Tse Chun Kuen
goooo goooo
Director Director
oo oo
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial Jo0o00o00o0oooooooooooong
statements.
Jo0o0oo0oo0o0oOooo0oO00 ooooooooo
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Ooo0doomn

Fortheyearended31March2019 OO OO OO0 O000000000

Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserve earnings Total
oo oooo oooo oooo oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo
(Note 22) (Note 23) (Note 23)
00o220 000230 000230
Balance as at 1 April 2017 00oo0oooooonoo 10,000 - - 31,603 41,603
Profit and total comprehensive goooooooooo
income for the year - - - 13241 13241
Reorganisation oo (10,000) - 10,000 - -
Shares issued pursuant to the goopooooooooo
capitalisation issue 4,500 (4,500) - - -
Share issued pursuant to the ooooooooooo
share offer 1500 69,000 - - 70,500
Share issuance costs oooooo - (10513) - - (10,513)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 gobo0oooooooo
oo 6,000 53,987* 10,000* 44 844* 114831
Balance as at 1 April 2018 ooooooooooon
(as originally stated) gooooooa 6,000 53,987 10,000 44,844 114831
Effect arising from initial goopooooooooo
application of HKFRS 15 0150000000
(Note 2) 00020 - - - 516 516
Effect arising from initial oooooooooooao
application of HKFRS 9 o90ooooono
(Note 2) 00020 - - - (209) (209)
Balance as at 1 April 2018 0o000o0O00O0oOooono
(as restated) oooog 6,000 53,987 10,000 45151 115,138
Profit and total comprehensive ooooooooooa
income for the year - - - 11,930 11,930
Balance as at 31 March 2019 goopoooooood
oo 6,000 53,987* 10,000* 57,081* 127,068
d These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of approximately * o000 O0o00O00O0OoO0OO0OO0OO0oOoOooOoOoan

HK$121,068,000 (2018: approximately HK$108,831,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

121,0680000 00 O OO OO OO 1088310000 O I

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.

gobo0O0o0ooO0oOoOooOO0oDbDOoDOOoOooOoon
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Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Interest income
Interest expense
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment
Provision for loss allowance on financial assets
and contract assets
Reversal of loss allowance on financial assets
and contract assets

Operating profit before changes in
working capital

Increase in contract assets

Decrease in gross amounts due from customers
for contract work

Decrease/(Increase) in trade and otherreceivables OO0 000000000 OO0

Decrease/(Increase) in restricted cash

Decrease in gross amounts due to customers for
contract work

Decrease in trade and other payables

Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Purchases of plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid

Decrease in amounts due to directors
Increase in pledge bank deposits
Proceeds from share offer

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Fortheyearended31March2019 OO OO0 OO0O000000000
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14,455 18,667

1,409 836

(a48) (228)

18 215

= @

1,723 2513

(151) (5,109)

17,006 16,893

(7,628) -

= 9511

594 (13,060)

820 (740)

= (4,164)

(14,392) (52)

(3,600) 8,388

(5,640) (5,940)

(9,240) 2448

444 226

(252) (2,243)

= 1

192 (2,016)

(18) (215)

27 = (20432)
27 (5,088) -
= 59,987

(5,106) 39,340

(14,154) 39,772

62,915 23143

20 48,761 62,915
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GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

Noble Engineering Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as to the “Group”) is principally engaged in
provision of wet trades works services.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 April 2017
as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect
from 29 September 2017.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2019, its parent and ultimate holding company
is Land Noble Holdings Limited (“Land Noble”"), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") and owned as to 50% by Mr. Tse
Chun Yuen (“Mr. Eric Tse") and 50% by Mr. Tse Chun Kuen (“Mr. CK
Tse").

The addresses of the registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O.
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and the principal
place of business of the Company is Room 809, 8/F., Cheung Sha Wan
Plaza, Tower Il, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKS$”), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

Prior to the corporate reorganisation undertaken in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“Reorganisation”), the group entities were under the control of Mr. Eric
Tse and Mr. CK Tse. Through the Reorganisation, the Company became
the holding company of the companies now comprising the Group on 6
September 2017. Accordingly, for the purpose of the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, the Company has been
considered as the holding company of the companies comprising the
Group after the Reorganisation throughout the years presented. The
Group comprising the Company and its subsidiaries resulting from the
Reorganisation is regarded as a continuing entity. The Group was under
the control of Mr. Eric Tse and Mr. CK Tse prior to and after the
Reorganisation.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared as if the
Company had been the holding company of the Group throughout the
years presented in accordance with Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”"). The consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the years presented, which include the results, changes
in equity and cash flows of the companies comprising the Group after
the Reorganisation, have been prepared as if the current group structure
had been in existence throughout the years presented, or since their
respective dates of incorporation, where this is a shorter period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA. The
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements set out in this
report have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except as otherwise stated in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the accounting policies of
the Group. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
and related amendments
Amendments to As part of the Annual
HKFRS 1 Improvements to HKFRSs
and HKAS 28 2014-2016 Cycle
Amendments to Classification and Measurement of
HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment Transactions
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts
Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property
HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group

(Continued)

Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (‘HKFRS
15")

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 18 “Revenue”
(“HKAS 18"), HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” (‘HKAS 11”)
and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initially applying this standard recognised at the date
of initial application, 1 April 2018. Any difference at the date
of initial application is recognised in the opening retained
earnings and comparative information has not been
restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the
standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed at 1 April 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 and
the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from provision of wet
trades works services which arise from contracts with
customers. The accounting policies for recognition of
revenue from such contract works before and after
adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018 are described in
Notes 2.21 and 2.22 respectively. The changes in the
accounting policies due to the adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1
April 2018 did not have impact on the amounts of revenue
and direct costs recognised as expense in respect of the
contract works carried out by the Group except as follows:

—  Under HKAS 11, the Group recognised contract
costs incurred as expense based on the stage of
completion which was measured based on surveys
of work performed, whereas under HKFRS 15, all
contract costs incurred are recognised as expense
unless they meet all the criteria specified in HKFRS
15 for recognising costs incurred to fulfil a contract
as an asset.

Further, as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, gross
amounts due from or to customers for contract work are
reclassified as contract assets and contract liabilities
respectively. Further, retention monies receivables are
reclassified from trade and other receivables to contract
assets as these retention monies receivables do not
represent the Group’s right to consideration from its
customers that is unconditional. Under HKFRS 15, a right
to consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group

(Continued)

Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (‘HKFRS 9”)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 and the related
consequential amendments to other HKFRSs for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for 1) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit
losses (“ECL”) for financial assets and 3) general hedge
accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to
instruments that have not been derecognised as at 1 April
2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at 1 April 2018. The difference between
carrying amounts as at 31 March 2018 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 April 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained earnings and other components of equity,
without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” (‘HKAS 39").
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. 000OO0OD0DOOOo
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 O000ooo
2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group 211 OO0Oo0Ooooooooooogon
(Continued)
Adoption of HKFRS 9 (Continued) ooooooOoooooemmoO
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9 ooooooooooooonno
ooo

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position ooooooooooooo
The table below illustrates the classification and ooooooooooooooooo
measurement (including impairment) of financial assets, goooobDOooooooooenUno
contract assets and deferred tax assets which are subject go0ooOooOoOooooDoooosao
to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of initial oooobooooooooooboooo
application as at 1 April 2018. goooooooooood

Additional loss

allowance
Original Original recognised and
measurement carrying  therespective  New carrying
Financial assets and category under New measurement amount under deferredtax  amount under
contract assets HKAS 39 category under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 impact HKFRS 9
oooooo gooooOC OoOOoOo OQOoOooo
03900000 goopboooonoen 039000 D000O0OD0O OO0090OO
goooooooo oooo goooooo gooon gooo oooo
HK$000 HK$:000 HK$000
oon ooo oono
1 Contract assets NA NA 51440* (205) 51,235
good gooo gooo
2 Trade and other receivables Loan and receivables  Financial assets at amortised cost 28486* (45) 28441
goooooooo goooooo oopoooooooooo
3 Bank balances Loan and receivables  Financial assets at amortised cost 62,915 - 62915
gooo gooooog oooooooooooo
4 Restricted cash Loan and receivables  Financial assets at amortised cost 820 - 820
goooo goooooo gooooooooooo
(250)
Recognition of deferred tax assets 4
gooooooo
(209)
* Those amounts are after the adjustments from the * oooooooooooooooo
application of HKFRS 15. 01000000
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group

(Continued)
Adoption of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9
(Continued)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which use a lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables and contract assets. To measure the ECL, the
trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped
based on individual risk assessment and/or collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 general approach to
measure ECL on deposits and other receivables. The Group
has applied the general approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at 12-month ECL (“12m ECL"), since
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition for deposits and other receivables. The
ECL for bank balances are insignificant because such assets
are placed in banks with good reputation and there has
been no recent history of default in relation to these banks.

As at 1 April 2018, the additional credit loss allowance of
approximately HK$250,000, together with the recognition
of the corresponding deferred effects as deferred tax
assets of approximately HK$41,000, totaling approximately
HK$209,000 has been recognised against retained earnings
as at 1 April 2018. The additional loss allowance is charged
against the respective asset.

The additional impairment loss allowance upon the initial
application of HKFRS 9 as disclosed above resulted entirely
from a change in the measurement attribute of the loss
allowance relating to each financial asset and contract
assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. 0000000 Oooo

ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 OO00moo

2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group 211 OO0Oo0Ooooooooooogon

(Continued)
Adoption of HKFRS 9 (Continued) ooooooOoooooemmoO
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9 ooooooooooooonno
(Continued) ooooono
All loss allowances for financial assets and contract assets ooooooooooooooooo
as at 31 March 2018 reconcile to the opening loss o0oooocoooooooooooon
allowance as at 1 April 2018 is as follows: gpbobooooooooogoooDo

Trade and other

Contract assets receivables Total
ooo
oooo gooooad od
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo oono oono
(Note 17) (Note 19)
0ooo17g 000 190
Closing balance as at gooooogo
31 March 2018 ooooooooo - 69 69
Amountsremeasured through O O0O0O0O0O0O
opening retained earnings ooooooo 205 45 250
Opening balances as at goooooooog
1 April 2018 ooooo 205 114 319
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. 0000000 Oooo
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 ODO00moo
2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group 211 OO0Oo0Ooooooooooogon

(Continued)
Impacts on opening consolidated statement of financial oooooooooocooooooo
position arising from the application of all new standards ooooono
As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting ooooocoooooooooooo
policies above, the opening consolidated statement of goooooOooooooooooo
financial position had to be restated. The following table gooooooooooooobooo
shows the adjustments recognised for each of the line goboobooooooooogo

item affected. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

31 March 2018 1 April 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
ooooo ooooo
000000 0OO0O0O0O0OO0 Ooooooo oooo
OoooOo oOoOo0oas0 oooen ooooo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo oono ooog
Current assets opooo
Contract assets opooo - 51,440 (205) 51235
Gross amounts due from gooooooooo
customers for contractwork 00 00O 19,074 (19,074) - -
Trade and otherreceivables OO OO0O0O0O00O0O 63,732 (35,246) (45) 28441
Equity oo
Reserves — Retained earnings 00 —0O 00O 44,844 516 (209) 45151
Non-current liabilities goood
Deferred tax liabilities goooooo 402 (13) (41) 348
Current liabilities oooo
Gross amounts due to ooooooooo
customers for contractwork 00 00O 3,515 (3515) - -
Currentincome tax liabilites OO O0O0OO0O 2,076 132 - 2,208
For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating 0000000 ooooooooon
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31 ooo00o00oo0oooooooooo
March 2019, movements in working capital have been ooo00oo00oo0oooooooooo
computed based on opening consolidated statement of 0oo00O00oo00oo0oooooooo
financial position as at 1 April 2018 as disclosed above. ooog
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Leases!
Insurance Contracts?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatmentst

oo

OO0oobofis

21 U00O0OoooOo

oo

Fortheyearended31March2019 OO OO0 OO0O000000000

212 J0oOooooooooooooooo
oooooooooooooooon

Amendments to Definition of a Business4
HKFRS 3
Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
HKFRS 9 Compensation!
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 between an Investor and its
and HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to Definition of Material5
HKAS 1
and HKAS 8
Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
HKAS 19 Settlement!
Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
HKAS 28 and Joint Venturest
Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle!
Conceptual Revised conceptual framework
Framework for for financial reporting®
Financial
Reporting 2018
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.
4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions

for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.2 The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective: (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (‘HKFRS 16”)

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangement and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. It distinguishes
leases and service contracts on the basis of whether an
identified asset is controlled by a customer. Subject to
limited exceptions for short-term leases and low value
assets, distinctions of operating and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees. However,
the standard does not significantly change the accounting
of lessors.

Application of HKFRS 16 will result in the Group's
recognition of right-of-use assets and corresponding
liabilities in respect of many of the Group’s lease
arrangements. These assets and liabilities are currently not
required to be recognised but certain relevant information
is disclosed as commitments to these consolidated
financial statements.

Total operating lease commitment of the Group as at 31
March 2019 amounted to approximately HK$569,000 (Note
28). The directors of the Group do not expect the adoption
of HKFRS 16 as compared with the current accounting
policy would result in significant impact on the Group’s
results but it is expected that certain portion of these lease
commitments will be required to be recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities.

Except for the new HKFRS mentioned below, the directors
of the Company anticipated that the application of all
other new and amendments to HKFRSs would have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements
in the foreseeable future.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. 0000000 Oooo
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries 22 0000
2.2.1 Consolidation 221 00

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

(@) Business combination

Except for the Reorganisation, the Group uses the
acquisition method of accounting to account for
business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquire and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

oboooooooooobooooooo
oooooomoooooooo
oboooboobobooboooooo
ooooooooooooooooo
gpobooooobOooooooobooo
obobooboobooooooooon
goooooooooooooooo
oboooOoooooooooono

goooooooooooooooao
goooooOooOooobooooboo
gboboooobOooooooobonoo
oboooooooo

@ 0000

oooooboooooooooo
oobooooooooobooo
oooOoobooboooooo
gooooooboooobooo
gooooooooooooo
gooDOooOOooDOoOoboDbOoo
oboboooooooooooo
oobooooboooobooo
gooooboobooooboo
gobooboooboooobooo
ocooooooooboooboooo
oooooooooDoooo
oooogooboooooooo
oboooooooooooon
goooooooobooooo
oboooooooo

obobooooobooooooo
gooooboooboooboo
gooooooooooooo
ooboobO0oOoDbOoOoDbOoo
oooooobooooooooo
ooooooboooooooo
gooooooooooooo
goooooooboooboo
oooooooooooooo
ooDoDoooDoo

ooo0oooOooooooD ooooooooo

69



70

®

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Joooggoo

Fortheyearended31March2019 OO OO OO0 O000000000

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)  Transaction with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee's net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.3

24

25

Merger accounting for common control
combinations

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling
parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of
goodwill or excess of acquirer's interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest. The
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income includes the results of each of the combining entities or
businesses from the earliest date presented or since the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the
date of the common control combination.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the board of directors that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(@)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Plant and equipment

The plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives or lease term, where applicable,
as follows:

Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 25%
Machinery and equipment 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessors are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessors) are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain plant and equipment. Leases of plant
and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Leases (Continued)

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the
lease term.

Financial instruments (before adoption of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

2.8.1 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired.

Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or expected to be
settled more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise “trade and other
receivables”, “bank balances” and “restricted cash” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

2.8.2 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (before adoption of

HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)
2.8.2 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

2.9 Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS

9 on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 since 1 April 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

2.9.1 Financial assets

Oo0o0000d00ooo

29 JOoO0OmobOooooOoooboooo
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29.1 OO0O0O

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding

(@) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt instruments.
Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, expect for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including debt instruments at amortised cost, trade and
other receivables, bank balances and restricted cash). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

2.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors credit-impaired and/or collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(@) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk;

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. 0000000 Oooo
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

2.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

29 JOoO0OmobOooooOoooboooo
gboobooobebOoooo

29.1 OO0 OoO

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) ooooomon

(@) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) (@) opbooooooo

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the
debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low
risk of default, i) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument
to have low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of “investment grade” as per
globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

2.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.

(c) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

2.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(d)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

Nature of financial instruments;

Past-due status;

Aging of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.

Joooogoo

Fortheyearended31March2019 OO OO0 OO0O000000000

Oo0o0000d00ooo

29 JOoO0OmobOooooOoooboooo

gboobooobebOoooo
29.1 O00O0000O

oooooooon

d O0O0O0O

goooooooboooboo
gooooooooooooo
gobooobOoobOooDbOoo
gooooOOooooooooo
oooooobooooooooo
oooooooooooooao
goboooboooooboboooo
oooooooooooboooo
opboo

() 0000O0O0O0O0OOO

ooboooobooooooooDo
oooooomoooooo
goooomoooooooo
gobooboobooboo
gooooooooobooooo
goooooooboooooooo
gooooooooooooo
goooobooooooooon

goooooooboooooooo
oooooooooooooo
goooooooboooboo
ooooooobooooooo
gbooooooooooooo

goooobooobooboo

gooooobooboooboo

gooooooooooboo

goooooo
ooooooo
ooooo

oooooono

ooooomoom

gooooooooobooobo ocooboobooooo

79



80

®

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREgERERERERERN

Fortheyearended31March2019 OO OO OO0 O000000000

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. 0000000 Oooo
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

2.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

29 UJOo0OmobOooooOoooboooo
gboobooobebOuoooo

29.1 OOOODOo

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(e) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade and other receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset, if the part being
considered for derecognition meets one of the following
conditions: (i) the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows from the financial asset expire; or (i) the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset have
been transferred, the Group transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or (iii)
the Group retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to the eventual recipient
in an agreement that meets all the conditions of
derecognition of transfer of cash flows (“pass through”
requirements) and transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety meets
the criteria for derecognition, the difference between the
two amounts below is recognised in profit or loss:

the carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred; and

the sum of the consideration received from the
transfer and any cumulative gain or loss that has
been recognised directly in equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

2.9.2 Financial liabilities and equity

Oo0o0000d00ooo

29 JO0ODMobOOOoOOOODOOODOO
gboooboooboebOononooo

292 000000

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(@) Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issued costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

(b)  Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
or at FVTPL.

(i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost,
including trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

29

Financial instruments (after adoption of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

2.9.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position where there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. There are also arrangements that
do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the
related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances,
such as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

2.10 Gross amounts due from/to customers for

2.11

contract work (before adoption of HKFRS 15 on
1 April 2018)

A construction contract is defined in HKAS 11 as a contract
specifically negotiated for the construction of an asset or a
combination of assets that are closely interrelated or
interdependent in terms of their design, technology and
functions or their ultimate purpose or use.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, and the stage of completion are measured
based on surveys of work performed. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that the
amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is considered
probable.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amounts due from
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for which
costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses)
exceed progress billings. Progress billings not yet paid by
customers and retention are included within “trade and other
receivables”.

The Group presents as a liability the gross amounts due to
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for which
progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits
(less recognised losses).

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at their
transaction price as determined under HKFRS 15 and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts (if any).

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if the payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

2.16 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each
reporting period in the countries where the Group operates and
generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences, arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of each reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
taxation liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of each
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)  Retirement benefits

The Group operates defined contribution plans and pays
contributions to privately administered pension insurance
plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

(c)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to a termination when the entity has a detailed
formal plan to terminate the employment of current
employees without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling
due more than 12 months after the end of each reporting
period are discounted to present value.

(d)  Bonusplans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of such obligation can
be made.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amounts have been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligations. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.20 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

2.21

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resource will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly
within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an
asset is recognised.

Revenue (before adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1
April 2018)

Revenue from provision of wet trades works services

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivables for the sale of services in the ordinary course of the
Group's activities. Revenue is shown after eliminating sales within
the Group.

Revenue from contract work is recognised based on the
percentage of completion of the contracts, provided that the
percentage of contract completion and the gross billing value of
contracting work can be measured reliably. The percentage of
completion of a contract is established by reference to the
construction works certified by the customer.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included in contract revenue to the extent that they have been
agreed with the customer and are capable of being reliably
measured.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. 0000000 Oooo
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue from contracts with customers (after 222 0000000 O0OOIDCOOOOOOOO0

adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018)

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those
services. Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3. Determine the transaction price

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a service (or a bundle of
services) that is distinct or a series of distinct services that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s performance as the entity
performs; or

the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct service.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue from contracts with customers (after

adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled
using either (a) the expected value method or (b) the most likely
amount, depending on which method better predicts the
amount of consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that
such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in
the future when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its assessment of
whether an estimate of variable consideration is constrained) to
represent faithfully the circumstances present at the end of the
reporting period and the changes in circumstances during the
reporting period.

Revenue from provision of wet trades works services

(@  Recognition

The Group provides wet trades works (including tile laying,
brick laying, plastering, floor screeding and marble works)
under contracts with customers. Such contracts are
entered into before the services begin. Under the terms of
the contracts, the Group is contractually required to
perform the works at the customers’ specified sites such
that the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs.

Revenue is recognised progressively using output method
which recognises revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value to the customer of the
promised goods or services transferred to date relative to
the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract with the customer. The progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligations in
the contract is determined based on the value of
performance completed to date as a percentage of total
transaction price to depict the transfer of control of the
goods or services to the customer. The Group recognises
revenue over time only if it can reasonably measure its
progress toward complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation. However, if the Group cannot reasonably
measure the outcome but expects to recover the costs
incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, then it
recognises revenue to the extent of the costs incurred. The
directors of the Company consider that output method
would faithfully depict the Group’s performance towards
complete satisfaction of these performance obligations
under HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue from contracts with customers (after
adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Revenue from provision of wet trades works services
(Continued)

(b)

Variable consideration

The Group considers both the terms of the contracts
entered into with its customers and its customary business
practices to determine the transaction prices for each of its
construction projects. The Group determines the
transaction price as the amount of consideration to which
it expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
promised goods or services to the customer. When
estimating transaction prices for construction projects in
progress, the Group recognises that the amounts of
consideration would vary because of price discounts and
rebates, which are usually finalised and agreed with the
customers during the final certification stage of the
projects. Although such variability relating to the
consideration promised by the customers are not explicitly
stated in the contracts, the Group considers that the
customers have valid expectations arising from customary
business practices that the price concessions would be
given to the customers at the end of the construction
projects. Hence the estimates of variable consideration are
typically constrained to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group'’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

After adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, contract assets
are assessed for impairment using the same lifetime ECL
methodology as that for trade receivables, as described in
Note 2.9.1 for financial assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOU NT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.23 Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities exposed it to a variety of financial risks: cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Cashflow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
variable-rate bank overdrafts. The Group'’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of the Hong Kong dollar prime rate arising from the
Group's Hong Kong dollar denominated bank overdrafts.

The Group currently does not have a formal interest rate
hedging policy in relation to cash flow and fair value
interest rate risks as the management considers that such
risks are insignificant to the Group. The management
monitors the Group’s exposure on an ongoing basis and
will consider hedging the interest rate when the need
arises.

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities as at the end of the financial reporting period, the
Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates and the
directors of the Company consider that the cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk is insignificant to the Group.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. 000000O0oo
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 00000mmoo
(b)  Creditrisk (b) OO0

Credit risk arises mainly from trade and other receivables,
bank balances, restricted cash and contract assets. The
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as
at the reporting dates in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets and contract assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of bank balances and restricted cash are
limited because the counterparties are banks with sound
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Under HKAS 39

In order to minimise the credit risk on trade and other
receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers and counterparties. These evaluations focus
on the counterparty’s financial position, past history of
making payments and take into account information
specific to the counterparty as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the counterparty
operates. Monitoring procedures have been implemented
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade and other receivable
balance at the end of the reporting period to ensure
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.

Under HKFRS 9

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
and other receivables and contract assets. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the Group has applied the
simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group considers the
probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis throughout the reporting period. To
assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.

The Group uses four categories for those receivables and
contract assets which reflect their credit risk and how the
loss provision is determined for each of those categories.
These internal credit risk ratings are aligned to external
credit ratings.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

Under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

The following table shows the Group'’s credit risk grading

framework:

OO000dUUooo
ooooomoo

ooooooo

oooooooooooonon

gooooooooooooooog

Basis for recognition of ECL
ooooooooooo

Trade receivables

and contract

Other financial

Category Group definition of category assets assets
ooooooo

oo goooooo oooo oooooo

Performing  For financial assets where there has low risk of default or has not  Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and that are not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 1)

ooo pgooooooOoO0oO0OO0OO0O0OO0OO0000O0O0DOOOOO 00000000 12000000
gooo0oooOoOoODoooiooo oo

Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a significant increase  Lifetime ECL—not  Lifetime ECL — not
in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit credit impaired credit impaired
impaired (refer to as Stage 2)

oo gooo0oO0oOoOoO0oO0oO0oO0oO0o0oO0D0O000DU0bOOO0OO0OO0 U0O0OD0ODO0OO0OO0OO0 ODOooooooo
ooooo2000 —poooooo —Qoooooo

Default Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated credit impaired credit impaired
future cash flows of that asset have occurred (refer to as Stage 3)

oo 0000000000000 0D0000DU00000O0 U0D0DU0D0DO0D0OO0O UDO0O0oooooo
0000000000000 0o0o0o0OOUooo3000 —Oooo —oooo

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off Amount is written off
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery

oo 0000000000000 0DD0O0O0O0O0ODOOOO0OO0 oooo oooo

oooooo

The Group applies individual assessment and/or
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings to measure the expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9 as stated in below:

The expected credit loss rates applied in the individual
assessment are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
internal credit rating by reference to a study of other
corporates’ default and recovery data from international
credit rating agencies, and are adjusted for forward-
looking information (for example, the current and
forecasted economic growth rates in Hong Kong, which
reflect the general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operate) that is available without undue
costs or efforts. Such forward-looking information is used
by the management of the Group to assess both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

The expected credit loss rates applied in the provision
matrix are estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.

Relevant information with regard to the exposure of credit
risk and expected credit losses for contract assets and
trade and other receivables as at 31 March 2019 are set out
in Notes 17 and 19.

The Group made no write-off on trade and other
receivables and contract assets during the year ended 31
March 2019.

Concentration of credit risk

The Group has concentration of credit risk in trade and
other receivables and contract assets as there was one
customer (2018: one customer) which individually
contributed over 10% of the Group’s trade and other
receivables and contract assets. The aggregate amounts of
trade and other receivables and contract assets from this
customer amounted to 61.8% (2018: 23.9%) of the Group's
total trade and other receivables and contract assets as at
31 March 2019. This customer which is the Group’s largest
customer whom there is no recent history of default and is
a company listed in Hong Kong and is part of a leading
well known conglomerate in Hong Kong. The Group has
categorised this customer as “Performing” and determined
its loss allowance based on lifetime ECL. For the detail on
the loss allowance please refer to Note 19.

Other than the above, the Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a
large number of counterparties and customers.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet their liquidity
requirements in the short and long term. Management
believes there is no significant liquidity risk as the Group
has sufficient financial resources to fund their operations.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows and the earliest date the Group may be
required to pay.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. UOU0OUOOUgoo

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

On demand or
within one
year

oooo
oood
HK$'000

oood

oooodooo
(c OOO0OOO0OOOOOO

Between one Between two
and two years and five years Total

oooo oooo oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
0ooo ooo ooo

As at 31 March 2019 gopoooo
gooogo
Trade and other payables ooooooooo 14,704 - - 14,704
As at 31 March 2018 oooooo
goooog
Trade and other payables opoooooooo 29,096 - - 29,096
3.2 Capital risk management 32 0O0O0O0Ooo

The Group'’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, to
support the Group'’s stability and growth; to earn a margin
commensurate with the level of business and market risks in the
Group's operations and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, obtain new borrowings
or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as the total interest-bearing liabilities divided by
the total equity.

The Group has no interest-bearing liabilities for the reporting
dates, and which no gearing ratio was presented.

3.3 Fairvalue 3.3

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on recurring
basis

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing model
based on discounted cashflow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised

cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate to their
fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and
contract assets

The directors of the Group estimate the amount of loss allowance for
trade receivables and contract assets based on the credit risk of trade
receivables and contract assets. The loss allowance amount is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows with the consideration of expected
future credit losses. The assessment of the credit risk of trade receivables
and contract assets involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty
as the directors of the Group estimates the loss rates for debtors by using
forward-looking information. When the actual future cash flows are less
than expected or more than expected, a material impairment loss or a
material reversal of impairment loss may arise accordingly. For details of
impairment assessment, please refer to Notes 17 and 19.

Stage of completion of construction works

The Group recognises its contract revenue according to the stage of
work performed to date of the individual contract of construction works
as a percentage of total contract value. Because of the nature of the
activity undertaken in construction contracts, the date at which the
contract activity is entered into and the date when the activity is
completed usually fall into different accounting period and actual cost or
revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of the
reporting period, which could affect the revenue and profit recognised
in future years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to date. The
Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue, contract
costs and variation orders prepared for each construction contract as the
contract progresses. Management regularly reviews the progress of the
contracts and the corresponding costs of the contract revenue.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents construction
contract receipts in the ordinary course of business. Revenue are
recognised during the reporting period are as follows:

(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

By timing of revenue recognition:
Control transferred over time

gooooooog
obooooooo

By type of services:
Provision of wet trades works services

(b) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations
The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised
in the future related to performance obligations that were
unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2019.

Remaining performance obligations expected to be
satisfied during the year ending:
31 March 2020

The Group applies the practical expedient in paragraph C5(d) of
HKFRS 15 and does not disclose information about remaining
performance obligations as at 31 March 2018 expected to be
satisfied in the future.
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2019
ooood

2018
ooooo

HK$'000
ooo

HK$'000
ood

364,165 408,944

2019
ooood

2018
ooooo

HK$'000
ooo

HK$'000
ood

364,165 408,944

(b) DO0ODODOOOOODODO
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gooooooomooobooooogoo
oboooood

2019
ooooo

HK$’000
oood

obooooooooboooono
ooooooo
obooboooooooo

127,052

000000000 000001500 c5(d)
oo0ooooOO0oooOO0O0oooOo0Oooboo0OOoon
goo0obOO0ooOoOoOoO0ooDbOooboOooo
opbooomooo



®

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREgERERERERERN

Fortheyearended31March2019 OO OO0 OO0O000000000

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5, 000000 Oooo
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)
(c) Information about major customers (0 ODOOOOODODDO
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total goooooooo0ogoooi1woood
revenue of the Group are as follows: oo
2019 2018
ooooo goooo
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
Customer A OOA 273,667 206,667>
Customer B ooB 42,023 NAO OO
Customer C ooc NAODOO? 85,3242
B The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of total ! 0O0000000000000 0 10%0
revenue of the Group.
2 The above customers represent a collection of companies within a 2 go0o0oo0oOooooooooooog
group.
The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the gooooooooOoooOoooogooo
board of directors of the Company. The board of directors regards jooooooooOO0OO0O0000000o
the Group’s wet trades works service business as a single 000000000000 000000a
operating segment and regularly reviews the operating results of g0oooooooooooooooooo
the Group as a whole when making decisions about resources to 0O0000oo0ooooooooooooo
be allocated and assessing its performance. Also, the Group only 00000o0o0o0oooooooooooon
engages its business in Hong Kong. Therefore, all revenue of the oo0ooooOoooOooooOoooOooo
Group is derived from operations carried out in Hong Kong and goooo
all non-current assets of the Group are located in Hong Kong.
Accordingly, no segment information is presented.
6. OTHERINCOME AND GAIN 6. JODOOO0OO
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents construction J00oD0dooo0oooooooooooooo
contract receipts in the ordinary course of business. Revenue are odopoooooOoooooooooo

recognised during the reporting period are as follows:

2019 2018
ooooad ooooo

HK$’000 HK$'000
ood ood

Bank interest income gopoooo 448 228
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment goooooooo = 1
Others oo 6 54
Reversal of loss allowance (Notes 17 and 19) ooooowooiro 190 151 5109

605 5392

gooooooooobooobo ocooboobooooo
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7. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. 0000000

2019 2018
ooood ooooo

HK$’000 HK$'000

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging: 0 000000000000

oood

ooogd

Depreciation of owned assets gpooooo 1,409 867
Less: Amount included in gross amounts due gooooomoomo
from/(to) customers for contract work ooooooooooo - (31)
1,409 836
Operating lease rental in respect of machinery and oooooooooooooo
equipment 228 396
Add: Amount included in gross amounts due gooooomoomo
from/(to) customers for contract work ooooooooooo - 39
228 435
Auditors' remuneration ooooog 1,000 1,000
Listing expenses oooo - 13581
Operating lease rental in respect of goooooooooooo
— Premises —aoo 680 632
— Car parks —ooo 81 64
Provision for loss allowance (Notes 17 and 19) 0o00yooi17o 190 1,723 2,513
Subcontracting fee included in direct costs oopoooooooo 268,522 303,532
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments (Note 8) ooomooooooooosn 17,219 18,851
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind
Retirement scheme contributions
— defined contribution plan

gopooooo

Add: Amount included in gross amounts due
from/(to) customers for contract work

The Group operates defined contribution schemes in Hong Kong which
comply with the requirements under the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) Schemes Ordinance. All assets under the schemes are held
separately from the Group under independently administered funds.
Contributions to the MPF scheme follow the MPF Schemes Ordinance.

BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of each director and chief executive for the
year ended 31 March 2018 and 2019 is set out below:

ooooooooooon

—Ooooooo

Fee

od

HK$’000
ooo

Year ended 31 March 2019 goooooo
goooooooo
Executive directors oooo

8.

Joooogoo
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2019
ooood

HK$'000
ooad

Jodboooooogn

2018
ooooo

HK$'000
ooo

goooboomooao
ooooooooooo

16,646 17,202
573 610
17,219 17812
- 1,039
17,219 18,851

oooooooO0ooO0oooOoooooo
goooooOO0o0ooooboOoOooOoooDbOboO0o0on
ooooOoooooooobobooooboonoo
goooOobooOooooooooon

9. Duooooon
000000Do0oo0o

(a)

ooobooboooboOooboOooooboOooo
oooboooooooooooobooooon

Salaries,
allowances and
benefit in kind

goooooag
gooo

HK$'000

goao

Discretionary
bonuses

oooad
HK$'000
ooo

oooo
HK$’000

Retirement
scheme
contributions

Total
oa

aad
HK$'000

ooo ood

Mr. Eric Tse (Note (7)) oooowoo@po - 840 35 - 875
Mr. CK Tse (Note (i) oooowooepo - 840 35 - 875
Ms. Tse Ming Hei (“Ms. Tse”) goooOooooom
(Note (i) ooo o - 212 20 8 240
Independent non-executive directors [7 (7 (] [ [] [] []
Mr. Tang Chi Wai (Note (jii)) 0o0oowoo (ing 180 - - - 180
Ms. Chung Lai Ling (Note (iii)) 0o0o00moo (o 180 - - - 180
Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong oooowoo (o
Kenji (Note (iii)) 180 - - - 180
Non-executive director oooon
Mr. Chan Wai Lung (Note (iv)) oooowoo o 116 - - - 116
656 1,892 920 8 2,646
o00o0ooo0ooooo0oo ooooooooo
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9. BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 9. D000 O0OOOooo
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) UO0D0O0D0ODOUOOOO0DOO
(Continued)

Retirement
scheme
contributions
oad
gooo
HK$'000
ooa

Salaries,

allowances and

Fee  benefitin kind
ooooog
gooo
HK$'000
goa

Discretionary
bonuses

Total

oo
HK$'000
ooad

oooa
HK$'000
ooad

oo
HK$'000
ooad

100

Year ended 31 March 2018 goopoooa

gooooooboo

Executive directors oooo

Mr. Eric Tse (Note (i) oooowoo@po - 840 - - 840

Mr. CK Tse (Note (i)) oooowoo@o - 840 - - 840

Ms. Tse (Note (ii) oowoo @mo - 480 60 18 558

Independent non-executive ooooooo

directors

Mr. Tang Chi Wai (Note (iii)) 00000000 ()0 100 - - - 100

Ms. Chung Lai Ling (Note (i) O0O000OJO0 (if)d 100 - - - 100

Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong oooooo@iyo

Keniji (Note (iii)) 100 - - - 100
300 2160 60 18 2538

During the year ended 31 March 2019, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2018: Nil).
Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors has waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year ended 31
March 2019 (2018: Nil).

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.
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9. BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Eric Tse and Mr. CK Tse were appointed as directors of the
Company on 12 April 2017 and redesignated as executive directors
of the Company on 14 September 2017. They were also directors
of certain subsidiaries of the Company and/or employees of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2019 and the Group
paid emoluments to them in their capacity as the directors of these
subsidiaries and/or employees of the Group before their
appointment as executive directors of the Company. Mr. Eric Tse is
also appointed as chief executive director of the Company on 10
September 2018,

(ii) Ms. Tse was appointed as director of the Company on 12 April 2017
and redesignated as executive director of the Company on 14
September 2017. Ms. Tse is the chief executive officer of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2018 up to 10
September 2018 the date of her resignation as executive director
of the Company.

(iii) Mr. Wong Yiu Kwong Kenji, Ms. Chung Lai Ling and Mr. Tang Chi
Wai were appointed as independent non-executive directors of the
Company on 11 September 2017.

(iv) Mr. Chan Wai Lung was appointed as non-executive director of the
Company on 10 August 2018.

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two of them
are directors for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: two), whose
emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments in respect of
the remaining three individuals for the year ended 31 March 2019
are as follows (2018: three):

Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind
Discretionary bonuses
Retirement scheme contributions

oooao
oooooo

The emoluments of each of the above non-directors, highest paid
individuals were below HK$1,000,000. During the year ended 31
March 2018 and 2019, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the above highest paid individuals as (i) an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or (ii) compensation for loss of office as a
director or management of any members of the Group.

ooooooooooon

Joooogoo

Fortheyearended31March2019 OO OO0 OO0O000000000

9. OD0OO0OO0OO0O0OOpoo

(@ ODoOOoOooooobooooo

ooo

(M) goooooooooooooooooo
gooooooooobooOooooboon
goooooooOooooooooooo
gooobooooooooobooooooo
goooooooo0ooO0o0OO000000
goooooooooooooooooo
goooooooooooooooooo
goooooooooooooooooboo
pooooooooOoooooOooooo
gooooooooooooooo

(ii) gooooooOoo0oooooooooo
gooooooooOoooooooooo
gooooooooooooOooooon
goooooooooooooooooon
gooooooboOoooooooobooo
oooooooo

(iii) gooooooooOoo0ooOooOooboOoon
oooooooooooboooooooo
ooooao

(iv) gooooooOooOoooooooooo
goooooooo

(b) ODOODOODOO

ooooooooogooooooogood
000000000o0000o0o0o0o00o
o oooooooomoooo
jddoodooooooooooooood
ooooooooooooooooooo
oo0@oooooooom

2018
ooooo

HK$'000
oood

2019
ooooo

HK$’000
ood

1,680 1491
= 460

54 54
1,734 2,005

gooobOooooooobooobooood
loo00000000O0O0O0OO0OOOOOOOO
goooooooogoooooooooo
gooooooooooo@moooooon
oooooooooomooooobDOoon
gboboooooobooooooobo

gooooooooobooobo ocooboobooooo
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10. 0000

2019 2018
ooood ooooo

HK$'000 HK$'000
oood ooogd

Interest on bank overdrafts gooooad 18 215

18 215

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. 00000

2019 2018
ooood ooooo

HK$'000 HK$'000
ood oood

Hong Kong profits tax ooooo
Current tax on profits for the year gpoooooooo 2,525 4,887
Adjustment in respect of prior year goooooooo - (42)
Current income tax goooo 2,525 4,845
Deferred income tax (Note 25) 0o0o0owooo2so - 581
2,525 5426
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland opoooooooooobooooooboooa2y
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the go0ooomory0mbbomoobooOonog
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 Jo0o0ooooooooooooooooao
March 2018 and was gazette on the following day. The two-tiered profits jd00o00odooOoDoDOoO0oO0oooooogo
tax rates regime will be applicable to a subsidiary of the Group for its 00o0o000o0oo0oo0ooUooUooooooog
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 April 2018. gooooooobooogoooo
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of 0000000000000 0Do 2000000000
profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits 00000 825%00002000000000000
above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. For the year ended 31 March gleswl0o0o00d0o0ooodoooooooog
2019, Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualified entity is calculated in 0000000ooooooooooooooooo
accordance with the two-tiered profit tax rates regime. The profits of go0oO0odCoDoDO0oO0ooOOoOoOooboooooDooo
other group entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered goo0oO0oOoOoDO0oO0oDOOOoDOOoOooDOoO
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5% I o e 10
of the estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong 000000015 100000000

for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: 16.5%).
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate

12.

13.

®

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

as follows:

Profit before income tax

Calculated at the statutory tax rate

Tax effects of:

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Tax losses for which no deferred income
tax asset was recognised

Adjustment in respect of prior year

Tax concession

Income tax expense

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to owners of the Company by the number of ordinary shares (2018:

Joooogoo

Fortheyearended31March2019 OO OO0 OO0O000000000

11. 0 0 0 0 oy

oooOooooOooooOoOooooooooonoo
goooooobooboooooboooog

2019 2018
opoood gooooo
HK$'000

HK$'000
ooao ooo

ooooooo 14,455 18,667
ooooooo 2,220 3,080
ooooo

ooooooo (74) (38)
oooooo = 2,242
oooo0O0000000O0

ooooo 399 214
ooooooooo = 42)
oooo (20) (30)
ooooo 2,525 5426

12. 0000

gooooooOoOooDbDOoOooooOoooDbOoo
goooooooooOoooooooooDoond

weighted average number of ordinary shares) in issue during the year. o0

Profit attributable to owners of the Company (HK$000) O 0 00000000000

Number of ordinary shares in issue/

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue (thousands of shares)

The diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per share as
there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue during the year

ended 31 March 2018 and 2019.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2019, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the reporting period (2018: Nil).

2019 2018
ooood ooooo
HK$'000

HK$'000
ood oood

11,930 13241
gbooooooooooooo
opooOoooo
600,000 525,616
0.02 0.03

goobO0oooOo0ooobOOoOoobOOoOooDboo
gooooooobooooobobooooobooboo
gboooooogooo

13. O O

oooboooooooooooooboobooobooboo
gobooooooboooooboboooobooboooo
gboobooooomobooooooodm

gooooooooobooobo ocooboobooooo
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14. SUBSIDIARIES 14. 0000
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2018 gooOooooUOooUOooUOoOooOooooOooo
and 2019: goooooooo
Proportion
Issuedand  ownership interest
Legal form, date and place of fully paid up held by the
Name of subsidiary incorporation/operations share capital Company Principal activities
ooDoooooooo oooooo oooooo
oooooag oopoooooo oooo Oooooooo DDoOOoo
Noble Wisdom Holdings Limited liability company US$4.00 100% (direct)  Investment holding
Limited (‘Noble Wisdom”) incorporated on 5 40000 o000 0000
000D0oo0ooOoooom January 2017, the BVI

oooooooooooo
oooooooooooboo

Eric Tse Cement Works Limited liability company HK$10,000,000.00 100% (indirect)  Provision of wet trades
Company Limited incorporated on 8 10,000,000.000 O 10000 000 works in Hong Kong
pOooooooooao October 1997, Hong Kong ooooOooooo
gooooooooooooo oo
0oooooooo
15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 15. 000000
CATEGORY

2019 2018
ooood ooooo

HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo

Financial assets gooo

At amortised costs: oooooo

Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments OO0 000000000000 O000O0 21,064 63,245

Bank balances gooo 53,849 62,915

Restricted cash gopoooo - 820
74,913 126,980

Financial liabilities gooo

At amortised costs: oooooo

Trade and other payables ooooooooo 14,704 29,096
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16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Joooogoo

Fortheyearended31March2019 OO OO0 OO0O000000000

16. OO OO

Office Motor Machinery and
equipment vehicles equipment Total
oooo oo ooooo oo

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooa ooa ooao

Cost
Asat 1 April 2017
Additions
Disposal

As at 31 March 2018

Accumulated depreciation
Asat 1 April 2017
Charge for the year
Disposal

As at 31 March 2018

Net book value
As at 31 March 2018

Cost
Asat 1 April 2018
Additions

As at 31 March 2019

Accumulated depreciation
Asat 1 April 2018
Charge for the year

As at 31 March 2019

Net book value
As at 31 March 2019

oo
oooooooooo
od
oo

podooboooboood

oooo
oooooooooo
oooad
oo

oooooboooboooo

oooo
ooooooooboood

oo
oooooooooo
od

gooooooboooo

oooa
oooooooooo
oooo

poooooooboooo

oooo
oooooboooboooo

205 1319 3038 4562
2 - 2211 2243
- - (168) (168)
237 1319 5081 6,637
14 1175 1370 2559
45 13 709 867
- - (168) (168)
59 1288 1911 3258
178 31 3170 3379
237 1319 5,081 6637
127 - 3625 3752
364 1,319 8,706 10,389
59 1,288 1,91 3,258
48 31 1,330 1,409
107 1,319 3,241 4,667
257 - 5,465 5,722
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17. CONTRACT ASSETS 17. 0000

2019 2018
ooood ooooo

HK$'000 HK$'000
oood ooogd

Contract assets gooo
Less: loss allowance gooooo

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from contract
works as the Group’s rights to receive consideration from its customers
are conditional upon the completion of surveys of works carried out.
Upon completion of the surveys of work, payment certificates would
then be issued, upon which the Group’s right to consideration become
unconditional and the amounts recognised as contract assets are
reclassified to trade receivables. Typically, the time interval between the
performance of works and the Group’s right to consideration becoming
unconditional range from one to twelve months for the construction
contracts engaged by the Group (2018: from one to two months), except
for retention monies receivables (see below).

As at 31 March 2019, the balance of contract assets included retention
monies receivables from customers amounting to approximately
HK$34,983,000, net of provision for credit loss allowance.

The Group generally allows 3% to 10% of total contract price of its
contracts as retention, which are unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable at the completion of the defects liability period of individual
contracts which range from 12 months to 24 months from the date of
the completion of the respective contract. The Group is responsible for
rectifying defects or imperfections in relation to the contract works done
which are discovered after completion.

The due date for settlement of the Group's retention monies receivables
are based on the completion of defects liability period as at 31 March
2019 as follows:

60,619 -
(1,721) -

58,898 -

goboooooOooobobOoooobooooobooo
goobObooooobobooobobobooooboobooo
goobooooooobooooobooood
gobooooooOoooobOoooDbOooooo
goooooooboOoooobOoooobooooo
goobOO0oooobOooooboooobooonog
goobOooooooobOOoooboooDbnoo
gooooo0ooooooooooooom
gooooo0oOoooom

goobOoooooooooobooOoooooboo
OoOoo0o0oob000Dbs49830000 00000
ooom

0o00o000o00o0oo0o00oDOD3a%010%000
gooooooooooooboooooooonog
Uooobooboooob12024000000
goooooooooboboooobobooooboooo
gboooo

gboboooooOoooobOooobooooooaon
gbooooooobooboooobog

31 March 2019
ooooo

goooono
HK$’000
oood

Due within one year ooooo 34,983
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17. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 17. 00 0 Oooo
The entire balance of the Group’s retention receivables as at 31 March gooOooooUOooUOooUOoOooOooooOooo
2019 were not yet due. The Group does not hold any collateral over this gooooooooooooooooooooog
balance. oooo
Upon the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2019, the Group applies the gddoo0o0o0oO0o0ooooooooooboooos
simplified approach to provide for expected credit losses prescribed by goooooooooooooDbooooooooe
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision goooooOoooooocOoooooooooo
for all contract assets. To measure the expected credit losses, contract Jo0odoo0oOOopoDOoooooOooDooooonoo
assets have been grouped based on individual risk assessment and/or goooO0ooooOooOodooooooooobooo
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings. The goboooobOooooobooooobooooa
expected credit losses below also incorporate forward-looking gooooobooogoogooooo
information.
Provision for loss allowance in respect of retention monies receivables as go0o0oooDoDooooDoOooooooooog
at 31 March 2019 includes an amount of approximately HK$1,536,000 in go0o0odopo0oOoobDOoOooooooooog
respect of a customer which was individually assessed to be credit gogisseo00 0000000000 O0OO0O
impaired. Based on the Group’s assessment of the poor financial gooooooobooboooooobooobooboo
condition of the customer, a 100% expected loss rate was applied to the gboooooobooi1oooooo

retention monies receivables outstanding as at 31 March 2019.

Contract assets
gooo

As at 31 March 2019 Ooo0oooooooooo

Expected credit loss rate (average) joooooooooo 2.84%

Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) gopomoooo 60,619

Expected credit losses (HK$'000) ooooomoooo 1,721
0000000000000 000000000 107
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17. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 17. 00 0 Oooo
The movement in the provision for loss allowance in respect of contract gooOooooUOooUOooUOoOooOooooOooo
assets during the year ended 31 March 2019 was as follows: goooooooooo

Lifetime ECL —
Lifetime ECL credit impaired Total
0000 OoOOoOoooo

oooo —0o0aoo oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooa ooao ooo

As at 31 March 2018 gooooooooooo - - -
Effect arising from initial application of gooooooooooao
HKFRS 9 gopooOoQd 160 45 205

As at 1 April 2018 (restated) 0o0doOooooomoooo 160 45 205
Provision made for the year ooooooo 97 1,536 1,633
Reversal for the year oooao (72) (45) (117)
As at 31 March 2019 godbooooooood 185 1,536 1,721
(@) Revenue recognised in relation to contract (@@ OO0OO0OOOOoooo

assets

The following table shows how much of the trade receivables goooooooooDoOOoOooooooo

recognised in the respective reporting period relates to carried- gbooooooooooo

forward contract assets.

2019
ooooo

HK$’000
oood

Transfers from the contract assets recognised at ooooooooooooo
the beginning of the year to trade receivables oooooo 29,264
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GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO 18
CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK

gooouooooooooad
god

2018
ooooao

HK$'000
ooo

2019
ooooao

HK$'000
ood

Gross amounts due from customers for Jo00000oOo0oooooo
contract work

Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits goooooooooooo

less recognised losses gooooog - 563,633
Less: Progress billings received and receivables gooooooooog - (544,559)
- 19,074
Gross amounts due to customers for ooooooooooooo
contract work
Progress billings received and receivables goooooooo - 273,779
Less: Contract costs incurred plus recognised oooooooooooog
profits less recognised losses gooooogoo - (270,264)
- 3515

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. 00 0000oon

2019
ooood

HK$'000
oood

2018
ooooo

HK$'000
goood

Trade receivables gooooad 18,400 20,129
Less: Provision for loss allowance (Note c) ooo0o0o00uooed (151) (69)
Trade receivables — net (Note a) oooooooooooan 18,249 20,060
Retention (Note b) 000700 beo - 35,246
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments jo00Oo0ooooooooo 4,514 8426
Less: Provision for loss allowance (Note c) oo0oooooed (19) -
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments—net 0000000000
goooog 4,495 8,426
22,744 63,732

gooooooooobooobo ocooboobooooo
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Fortheyearended31March2019 OO OO OO0 O000000000

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@)  Trade receivables
The credit period granted to customers are ranging from 17 to 33
days generally.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on invoice date
is as follows:

19. 00000000 Oooo

@)

gpooooo
obooboooooooooi1roo3s33non

goooooooobbOobob0ooooodgo
oo

2019 2018
ooood ooooo

HK$'000 HK$'000
oood ooogd

0-30 days 00 300
31-60 days 3100600
61-90 days 6100900

Trade receivables of approximately HK$10,112,000 as at 31 March
2019 were not yet past due (2018: approximately HK$18,715,000),
and approximately HK$8,137,000 as at 31 March 2019 were past
due but not impaired (2018: approximately HK$1,345,000). These
relate to trade receivables from a number of independent
customers of whom there is no recent history of default and no
written off has therefore been made. The ageing analysis of these
trade receivables is as follows:

11,721 17413
6,440 2,631
88 16
18,249 20,060

ddoodooooooobooooooa
0101120000 000000 0CO0O0OOODO
187150000 0 MO0 0O0O0O0OOOOOOO
gooswreo0 00000000000
gooooisdso000@mOooooonOon
gooooooooobooobooooood
goooooooooOooOoboOoOooog
oboobooooo

2019 2018
ooooo ooooo

HK$’000 HK$'000
ood ooo

0-30 days 00 300
31-60 days 3100600

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recognised a
loss allowance of HK$151,000, based on individual risk assessment
and/or collectively using a provision matrix. The movement of the
loss allowance is set out in Note c.

(b)  Retention receivables were not past due as at 31 March 2018, and
were to be settled in accordance with the terms of respective
contract.
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

©

Provision for loss allowance

Prior to the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the Group
reviews trade and other receivables for evidence of impairment
on both an individual and collective basis. Based on the
impairment assessment, provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables are recognised in respect of accurate due from
debtors which were in financial difficulties in repaying the
outstanding balances. Included in the provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables, which was measured based on
incurred credit losses under HKAS 39, as at 31 March 2018 was a
provision for individually impaired trade receivables of
approximately HK$69,000 with a carrying amount before
provision of approximately HK$85,000.

Upon the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the Group
applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit
losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on individual risk assessment and/or collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings. The
expected credit losses below also incorporate forward-looking
information.

0-30 days

o0 300

Joooogoo

Fortheyearended31March2019 OO OO0 OO0O000000000

19. 00000000 Oooo

(¢ 000000
0000000000000000000
0090000000000000DD000
0000000000000000000
0000000000000 000000
0000000000000000000
0000000000000000000
000000000 O00O0O00Onon
000000000000000000
690000 0 0000000000000
00000850000 0000000

goooooooobbooooooooo
o0oe0O0O0000OO0O0O0O0OOO0DOOO0D0O
ooooosespoOoboOoObOOoObOoobo
gpooooooooeoboooobonoono
goooooooooooooooooo
0o0oo0ooooooooooooooo
gooooooooooOobooOoooooo
uoboobooooobooboboooodg

Trade

receivables

Total
oooo
oooo

31-60 days 61-90 days Over 90 days

310 600 610 900 00900

As at 31 March 2019 pooooo
gooooo
Expected credit lossrate (average) D0 00000000 0.05% 0.02% 0% 100%
Gross carrying amount (HK$000) OO0 0000 11,727 6,441 88 144 18,400
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) OOOOOODOOOO 6 1 - 144 151
go0oooOoooOooooOo ooobooooon
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES onineesy  19. DO OO O 0O OO Oooo

(c) Provision for loss allowance (Continued) (c) ooooowoo
The movement in the provision for loss allowance in respect of goooooooooooooooooo
trade receivables during the year ended 31 March 2019 was as goooooooogoogoo
follows:

Lifetime ECL —
Lifetime ECL credit impaired Total
oooooooo

oooooooo —oooo oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo oood ood

As 31 March 2017 goobooooooooo - - -
Provision made for the year goooooo - 69 69
As at 31 March 2018 oooooooooooo - 69 69
Effect arising from initial application 000000000000

of HKFRS 9 goonpOoDO 8 - 8
As at 1 April 2018 (restated) gooooooooo

goooo 8 69 77

Provision made for the year goooooo 8 74 82
Reversal for the year oooo (8) - (8)
As at 31 March 2019 oooooooooooo 8 143 151
Provision for loss allowance in respect of trade receivable as at 31 jooooooo0OO0O00000000on
March 2019 includes an amount of approximately HK$143,000 in Joo000oooOoooDoOoooDooOoo
respect of a customer which was individually assessed to be goooopooooDi430000 00000
credit impaired. Based on the Group’s assessment of the poor 00000o0o0oooOoOooDoDOoooooo
financial condition of the customer, a 100% expected loss rate jo0ooo0oooUoooOooooooOoo
was applied to the trade receivables outstanding as at 31 March 001w ooooo
2019.
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES onineesy  19. DO OO O 0O OO Oooo

©

Provision for loss allowance (Continued) (c) ooooowoo

Upon the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2019, the Group goooooooooooooooooo
applies the general approach to providing for expected credit goofdOoOoUdOoUoOoOobDOooUooOoo
losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the 12m go0opoOoOoeCUoUobobDboOoooDbOoo
ECL for all the deposit and other receivables. To measure the gooOoooooobOooeonDOonoOonboOon
expected credit losses, deposits and other receivables have been goooobbooo0oooobooO0oOoOoo
grouped based on individual risk assessment and/or collectively goooooooooooOooobooooo
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings. The goooooooooooooooogg
expected credit losses below also incorporate forward looking jooooooogogoooooogood
information. goobooooobooo

Deposits and
other receivables

ooo
oooooo

As at 31 March 2019 Ooo0oooooooooo

Expected credit loss rate (average) oooooomoog 0.67%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) joomoooo 2,834
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) goooomooog 19
The movement in the provision for loss allowance in respect of 0o0oo00o0o0o0Oooooooooooon
deposits and other receivables during the year ended 31 March Joo0o0o0oooooooooooooo

2019 was as follows:

Deposits and
other receivables
ooog

goooono
HK$'000
oood

As at 31 March 2017, 1 April 2017 and goobooobooooboooooboooboo

31 March 2018 goooooooogoo -
Effect arising from initial application of HKFRS 9 goo0ooooooooooenuoono 37
As at 1 April 2018 (restated) goooooooomoooog 37
Provision made for the year ooooooog 8
Reversal for the year oooo (26)

As at 31 March 2019 gbooooooooood 19

gooooooooobooobo ocooboobooooo 113



14

®

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Joooggoo

Fortheyearended31March2019 OO OO OO0 O000000000

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(d)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables
are denominated in HK$.

(e) The other classes within trade and other receivables do not

contain impaired assets. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security.

20. BANK BALANCES

20.

OO00U0O0O0000ooo

(d) gooooooooboObOoO0o0oooooo
ooo

(e) gooooooobobOOoO0OO0o0oooooo
gobooboooooooooooooood

HRERERN

2019 2018
ooooo ooooo

HK$'000 HK$'000
oood oo0

Cash at banks oooo

Short-term bank deposit gooooo

Less: Pledged bank deposits goooooooo
Cash and cash equivalents oooooooo

The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in HK$.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group'’s banking facilities
were secured by car parking spaces and properties owned by Mr. Eric
Tse, Mr. CK Tse and their spouses, and personal guarantee granted by Mr.
Eric Tse and Mr. CK Tse. The secured car parking spaces and properties
owned by Mr. Eric Tse, Mr. CK Tse and their spouses, and personal
guarantees granted by Mr. Eric Tse and Mr. CK Tse were released in
September 2017.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's banking facilities were secured by
unlimited corporate guarantee executed by the Company and the
pledged bank deposits with effective interest rate 1.5% and maturity of
this deposits is 92 days.

21. RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash represent deposits held at an insurance company for
faithful performance in accordance with the terms of the contract
between the Group and the customer.
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21.

33,708 57915
20,141 5,000
53,849 62915

(5,088) -
48,761 62915

gboooooooogoogooo

gooooooDO0oOooboOoOooobooOoooDOoo
oo

goobOoOoooooOoOooobOooboooboooo
gbobooooooOoboooboobOoooooooo
oooobooboooooboobooooobooobooboo
goooOooooooooooooobooooo
oooooooOooooooobDOoooboDooo
oobooooooooooobooooobooooonoo

oooooooooooooboobooboooboooo
000000000000 0O0O0DO0O00 15%0
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22. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

fur

Notes:

(@)

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands on 12 April 2017 with an initial authorised share capital of
HK$100,000 divided into 10,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and
one nil-paid subscriber share was issued and allotted to the subscriber
which was subsequently transferred to Land Noble on the same date.

Pursuant to the resolutions passed by the sole shareholder of the Company
on 14 September 2017, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$100,000 to HK$15,000,000 divided into 1,500,000,000
ordinary shares by the creation of an additional 1,490,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each, ranking pari passu in all respects with the existing
shares.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation and as consideration for the acquisition by
the Company of the entire issued share capital of Noble Wisdom from Mr.
Eric Tse and Mr. CK Tse on 6 September 2017, the Company issued and
allotted 9,999 ordinary shares to Land Noble, all credited as fully paid
respectively.

Pursuant to a written resolution passed by the sole shareholder of the
Company on 14 September 2017 and conditional upon the share premium
account of the Company being credited as a result of the share offer, the
Company authorised to allot and issued a total of 449,990,000 ordinary
shares credited as fully paid at par to the holder of the Company's shares
on the register of members of the Company at the close of business on 14
September 2017 by way of capitalisation of the sum of approximately
HK$4,500,000 standing to the credit of the share premium account of the
Company.

On 29 September 2017, upon its listing on the GEM of the Stock Exchange,
the Company issued 150,000,000 new ordinary shares at an offer price of
HK$0.47 each and raised gross proceeds of approximately HK$70,500,000.

RESERVES

Share premium

Share premium is the excess of the proceeds received over the nominal
value of the shares of the Company issued at a premium, less expenses
incurred in connection with the issue of the shares.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of
the shares issued by the Company in exchange for the nominal value of
the share capital of its subsidiaries arising from the Reorganisation.
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23.

oo0o

@)

(b)

(d)

0O
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0o0ooobooooooobOnioo000000O
00100000000 00000010 O000O0O0O0OO
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 14 September 2017. The Scheme is to
attract and retain the best personnel, to provide additional incentive to
the eligible participants under the Scheme.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may at their absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, grant options to any
employees (full-time or part-time), directors, consultants, advisors,
substantial shareholder, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners or service providers of the Group, to
subscribe for shares of the Company. The eligibility of any participants to
the grant of any options shall be determined by the directors of the
Company (or as the case maybe, the independent non-executive
directors of the Company) from time to time on the basis of the directors’
opinion as to their contribution or potential to the development and
growth of the Group.

The aggregate number of the Company’s shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share options schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue from time to
time. No options may be granted under the Scheme or any other share
options schemes of the Company if this will result in the limit being
exceeded. The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company as from the adoption date must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of all the shares in issue upon the date on which
the shares are listed and permitted to be dealt in the Stock Exchange.
The 10% limit may be refreshed at anytime by approval of the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting provided that the total number of the
Company'’s shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share options schemes of
the Company must not exceed 10% of the Company's shares in issue as
at the date of approval of the refreshed limit.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up to date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue. Where any further grant of options to a participant under the
Scheme would result in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options granted and to be granted to such participant (including
lapsed or exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12- month
period up to and including the date of such further grant representing in
aggregate over 1% of the total number of shares in issue, such further
grant must be separately approved by shareholders of the Company in
general meeting with such participant and his/her close associates
abstaining from voting.

Joooogoo
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24. OO0

oooooooDooobDOo0ooDbOOoOoooDOoo
goobOooooOnmoooOonooooonog
goobOooooooobooobobooooboobooo
gbobooooooo

goboooooobOoOooooooooboDbOooo
ooooOO0oooobOO0ooooomooon
gbobooooooooooboooobooonoo
goooooobooooooobobobooooooDo
ubobOoooooboooooboOoooobonooo
gboboooooomooooooooooooon
gooboomoobooooobooooooboo
gboooooooboooooobooo

gooooooOo0oooOoOoooooooDooo
gooooooDo0ooDOOoOoooboOoooDOoo
ojoboooooooooooswdooooo
goobOooooboooobooooboooboo
030%ooooooooooooooo0oooo
goboooooooooboooobooooonod
gooobooooooboooooboooooboooo
gooooooooooboooobDoooDooo
gooooboolowooolwwoooooood
oboboooooobOoooooboOooooobonooo
gbobooooboooocboboobobobooobooboooo
gooooobooboooobooooooooon
0000000000000 0D0 10%0

gobooooooor0000ooO0oO0O0oDbDOO
goooooooooobooooboooobooo
oobOoooooooobOoooooooobDOoo
goobOooooboooooobooooboobooo
01wooooooooooooooobooooo
0000000oo0omoooom2000000
goooooobOoooooooooooomo
ooooooDOooooDooOooOoDOoD0oOo
oooooooooooooooooooooo
O1woOoooooooooooobooooooo
ubobOooooobOooooboOooooboooo
ooo

ooo0oooOooooooD ooooooooo

17



118

®

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates must
be approved by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company (excluding any independent non-executive director who is the
grantee). Where any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or any of
their respective close associates would result in the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company to such person in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue and having an aggregate value in
excess of HK$5 million must be approved by the Company’s shareholders
at the general meeting of the Company, with voting to be taken by way
of poll.

The offer of a grant of share options might be accepted in writing within
21 days from the date of the offer. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a period as
the directors may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the
date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof. A
nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of
an option with a remittance in favour of the Company within such time
as may be specified in the offer (which shall not be later than 21 days
from the date of the offer).

The subscription price shall be a price solely determined by the board of
directors of the Company and notified to a participant and shall be at
least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company's shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date;
(ii) the average closing prices of the Company's shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s share on the offer date.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on 14 September 2017, subject to early termination
provisions contained in the Scheme.

No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed since the
adoption of the Scheme and there were no share option outstanding as
at 31 March 2018 and 2019.
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24. 00 00 Uooo
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25. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during
the reporting period are as follows:

Deferred tax arising from: oooooooo

As at 1 April 2017
Charged to profit or loss (Note 11)

gooooooooo
ooooooi1ig

As at 31 March 2018 0oo0o0ooOoooooo

Effect arising from initial application of oooooooooooo
HKFRS 15 0150000000

Effect arising from initial application of 0ooooooooooo
HKFRS 9 090OooOOoOoDbO

As at 1 April 2018 (restated)
Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss
(Note 11)

As at 31 March 2019 oooooooooooo

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets in respect of the tax losses as the directors of the Company
consider that it is uncertain as to the extent that future profits will be
available against which tax losses can be utilised in the foreseeable
future.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$3,716,000 (2018: approximately HK$1,299,000), which are available
for offset against future profits that may be carried forward indefinitely
and are subject to approval from the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department.

contract assets

Joooogoo
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25. 00000

oooooooDooobDOo0ooDbOOoOoooDOoo
gMmoomooooooo

Loss allowance

on financial
assets and

Tax depreciation Total

ooooao

gooooooo oooo oo

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo ooo

ooooooooomoooo
ooooomoooooiio

440 (261) 179
(428) (153) (581)
12 (414) (402)
- 13 13
41 - 4
53 (401) (348)
259 (259) -
312 (660) (348)

goobOooooOooobOOooobOoooobooo
gboooooooboooooooboooooo
uboboooooooooobboooobOooboo
goboooooooooooboooooboooOoon
goboooooooboo

gbobooooobobobooooobboooooboooo
000037160000 00000000 12990000
oMmooobOooooooooobooooooo
ooooooo
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26000000000

2019 2018
opoood gooooo
HK$'000

HK$'000
ood ooo

Trade payables gooooo 11,608 26,018
Accruals and other payables opooooooooo 3,096 3,078
14,704 29,096

Payment terms granted by suppliers of materials and subcontractors are gooooooooDbDDbobOObObOOooooog
ranging from 0 to 30 days generally. 3000

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date is as gooogooooboooooooboobooooo

follows:

2019 2018
ooood ooooo
HK$'000

HK$'000
ood ooo

0-30 days 00 300 11,592 25,692
31-60 days 3100600 16 107
61-90 days 610 0 900 = 219

11,608 26,018

All trade and other payables are denominated in HK$. gooooooboooooooogoo

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 27. 000ogoooon
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
activities. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flow will be classified in the Group’s
consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

oobooooooooooooooboobooobooo
goooooooooooOooDboooboDooo
gbooooooooooobooDo

As at As at
Cash flows

31 March 2018
gooooo
oooo oooo gooooo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooao ooogd

1 April 2017
oooooo

Amounts due to directors oooooo 20,432 (20,432) -

As at As at

Pledged bank deposits ooooooo
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1 April 2018
oooooo

oooo
HK$'000
ooo

Cash flows
oooo

HK$'000
ooo

(5,088)

31 March 2019
goooono
gooooo
HK$'000
ooog

(5,088)
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COMMITMENTS 28. O O

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee oooo000—000ooooo

As at the reporting date, the total future minimum lease payments under 00oO0od0ooob0o0oooogooooooo
non-cancellable operating leases were payable as follows: oopoooooooo

2019 2018
ooood ooooo

HK$'000 HK$'000
ood ooo

Within one year onog 563 379
In the second to fifth years inclusive goooDooDmoooogooo 6 -
569 379
The Group is the lessee in respect of premises under operating leases. gbooooooooooobobooooooboooo
The leases typically run for initial periods of approximately 2 years, with goobOOoooooobbOoOoooobOooboooo
an option to renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated. ooooooooo
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 29. 00000
Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control, jointly ooooooooOoooobOoooboOooOooo
control or exert significant influence over the other party in making ooooopooooooooooooooooo
financial or operational decisions. Parties are also considered to be gooooo0oocooooooooooOoooo
related if they are subject to common control or joint control. Related gbooooooooogoo

parties may be individuals or other entities.

() Save as disclosed in Note 20 to the consolidated financial () gooooooooeoo0o0o0ooood
statements, the Group did not have any significant related party gooooooooooooooooDooo
transaction with related parties during the years ended 31 March goooooooooooooooooo
2018 and 2019. god

(b)  The emoluments of the directors and senior executives (py OOODDODODUODOODDODODODOODOOO
(representing the key management personnel) during the years gooooooO0ooDOoobDmODoOoOooo
ended 31 March 2018 and 2019 are disclosed in Note 9. oomopoooooeonon

gooooooooobooobo ocooboobooooo 121
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

2019

ooooao

HK$’000
ood

30 00000uoogoo

2018
ooooao

HK$'000
ooo

Non-current assets ooooo

Investments in subsidiaries gooooooo 41,890 41,500

Current assets oooo

Prepayment goooo 233 237

Amount due from a subsidiary gooooooood 42,721 15408

Bank balances gooo 17 29,689
42,971 45,334

Total assets ooogd 84,861 86,834

EQUITY oo

Capital and reserves goood

Share capital oo 6,000 6,000

Reserve (Note a) 0mooan 78,471 80,834

Total equity goooo 84,471 86,834

Current liabilities gooo

Amount due to a subsidiary gpooooooodg 390 -

Total equity and liabilities goooooa 84,861 86,834

Net current assets gooooao 42,581 45,334

Total assets less current liabilities gpoooooo 84,471 86,834

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 June

2019.

Mr. Tse Chun Yuen

go0o0oooDO0o0ooDbDO0O0o0oDOoOO0oooDOoo

oo

Mr. Tse Chun Kuen

ooooao ooooo
Director Director
oo oo
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Financial Summary
00O O

Revenue od

Gross profit oo

Profit before income tax ooooooog

Profit and total comprehensiveincome 00000000
for the year attributable to owners ooooooo
of the Company oooo

Total assets ooo

Total liabilities ooo

Total equity and liabilities oooooo

For the year ended 31 March
ooooooOoooOoOo

2019 2018 2017 2016
ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo oo0o oo0od
364,165 408,944 285430 267,408
29,837 42,399 29,818 20,015
14,455 18,667 16,021 14,732
11,930 13241 12,556 12321
142,120 149,920 108,333 87,623
15,052 35,089 66,730 68,576
142,120 149,920 108,333 87,623
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